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SHIRE OF LEONORA

NOTICE OF AN ORDINARY
COUNCIL MEETING

MINUTES OF ORDINARY MEETING HELD
IN SHIRE CHAMBERS, LEONORA
ON TUESDAY 15" NOVEMBER, 2011
COMMENCING AT 9.35 AM
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DECLARATION OF OPENING / ANNOUNCEMENTS OF VISITORS / FINANCIAL INTEREST
DISCLOSURE

11 Cr JF Carter declared the meeting open at 9.35am.

1.2 Visitors or members of the public in attendance
Nil

1.3 Financial Interests Disclosure
Nil

DISCLAIMER NOTICE
RECORD OF ATTENDANCE / APOLOGIES / LEAVE OF ABSENCE

3.1 Present

President J F Carter
Deputy President P Craig
Councillors G W Baker
S J Heather
MWV Taylor
R A Norrie
L R Petersen
CEO J G Epis
DCEO T M Browning

3.2 Apologies
Nil
3.3 Leave Of Absence (Previously Approved)
Nil
RESPONSE TO PREVIOUS PUBLIC QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE
Nil
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
Nil
APPLICATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Nil
PETTITIONS/DEPUTATIONS / PRESENTATIONS
Nil

CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS

Moved Cr P Craig, Seconded Cr RA Norrie that the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held on

18" October, 2011 be confirmed as a true and accurate record.
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ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PRESIDING MEMBER WITHOUT DISCUSSION

Cr JF Carter announced that he attended the Local Government Managers Australia (LGMA) conference gala
dinner, on 3" November, 2011, along with the CEO, Deputy President and Deputy CEO (and their partners). At this

dinner, CEO Mr Jim Epis was presented with a Certificate of Appreciation from LGMA, in recognition of his
service and contribution to the industry.
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10.0 REPORTS OF OFFICERS
10.1 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
10.1(A) REFERENCE GROUP - GWALIA

SUBMISSION TO: Meeting of Council

Meeting Date: 15™ November, 2011
AGENDA REFERENCE: 10.1 (A) NOV 11
SUBJECT: Reference Group - Gwalia
LOCATION / ADDRESS: Not Applicable
NAME OF APPLICANT: Shire of Leonora
FILE REFERENCE: Gwalia Preservation — General 8.12

AUTHOR, DISCLOSURE OF ANY INTEREST AND DATE OF REPORT
NAME: James Gregory Epis

OFFICER: Chief Executive Officer

INTEREST DISCLOSURE: Nil

DATE: 26" October, 2011

BACKGROUND

On the 20" July, 2010 Council resolved the following:

(1) that the Motion put forward by the Leonora Gwalia Historical Museum (LGHM) Board be accepted. To refresh
memories, following was that motion-

“That LGHM transfer all assets including finances to the Shire of Leonora for care and ownership and that those
assets be then owned and maintained as a community asset for the purposes of historical preservation and tourism
operation. All goods and chattels relevant to the precinct to remain in the precinct. LGHM require the Shire to
endorse an ADVISORY BOARD to meet bi-monthly and that a HIGH PRIORITY be given to their
RECOMMENDATIONS. The Group to be composed of two Shire representatives one being the Chair, GEDC, St
Barbara, Regional Heritage Advisor, Tourism WA, Heritage Architect and two community representatives. The
manager of the precinct complex to be line managed by either the CEO or Deputy CEO.”

(2) that an additional allocation of $30,000.00 be included in the forthcoming budget to assist with legal and other
expenses resulting from the transfer of assets; and

(3) that the composition of the proposed Advisory Board be re-visited to determine continued commitment of each
Member.

Since the 1% September, 2010 the Gwalia Precinct area including Hoover House and the Museum has been managed by the
Shire of Leonora

On the 21% September, 2011, Shire President Cr Jeff Carter authorised circulation of a public notice advising that it was the
intention of Council to create a Reference Group who would be responsible for providing advice and guidance to the Shire of
Leonora in regard the implementation of various projects within the precinct area. The reference group was to consist of:

two Shire of Leonora elected members

a person with curatorial service experience

a person with Collections Care experience

three community members committed to heritage issues and the tasks likely to be implemented
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Nominations closed on the 25" October, 2011 with the following having submitted an expression of interest:

e  Mr Jeff Carter - Shire of Leonora President and former Chairperson LGHM Board
e Mr Matt Taylor - Shire of Leonora Councillor

e  Ms Jacqui Sherriff - History and Heritage Consultant

e MsElaine Labuschagne - Collections Carer Coordinator

e  MrsJudy Carter - Former LGHM Board Member

e Mrs Gail Ross - Gwalia Museum Manager

e Ms Tralee Cable - Mining Administrative Superintendent

STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT

Section 3.1(2) of the Local Government Act 1995, states that the general function of a local government is to provide for the
good government of persons in a district.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

If the Gwalia precinct can be developed into one of the region’s major tourism drawcards (already evident) there will be flow
of benefits to the region as a whole. The more reasons tourists have to visit the Northern Goldfields the more all towns in the
region will benefit.

The unique tourism experience that Gwalia offers needs to be capitalised upon to capture a larger share of the tourism dollar
and by undertaking the restorative and interpretative works within the Gwalia Precinct will enhance the overall experience for
the visitor.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That council resolved to appoint seven Members namely Mr Jeff Carter, Mr Matt Taylor, Ms Jacqui Sherriff, Ms Elaine
Labuschagne, Mrs Judy Carter, Mrs Gail Ross and Ms Tralee Cable as nominees of the Gwalia Historical Precinct Reference
Group.

VOTING REQUIREMENT

Simple majority required.

COUNCIL DECISION

Moved Cr LR Petersen, Seconded Cr RA Norrie, that council resolved to appoint seven Members namely Mr Jeff Carter,

Mr Matt Taylor, Ms Jacqui Sherriff, Ms Elaine Labuschagne, Mrs Judy Carter, Mrs Gail Ross and Ms Tralee Cable as
nominees of the Gwalia Historical Precinct Reference Group.

CARRIED (7 VOTES TO 0)
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10.0 REPORTS OF OFFICERS
10.1 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
10.1(B) DIGITAL TELEVISION RETRANSMISSION

SUBMISSION TO: Meeting of Council
Meeting Date:
AGENDA REFERENCE: 10.1 (B) NOV 11
SUBJECT: Digital Television Retransmission
LOCATION / ADDRESS: Leonora
NAME OF APPLICANT: Shire of Leonora
FILE REFERENCE: TV/Radio/GWN Television Australia 5.7

AUTHOR, DISCLOSURE OF ANY INTEREST AND DATE OF REPORT
NAME: James Gregory Epis

OFFICER: Chief Executive Officer

INTEREST DISCLOSURE: Nil

DATE: 26" October, 2011

BACKGROUND

Since February, 2011 Mr Peter Thompson of Satellite Television and Radio Australia (STRA) has been providing
information in regards digital television and you will recall that the Shire of Leonora commissioned a report from him on
how the analogue to digital television switchover was going to affect Leonora.

In August, 2011 advice was received that two options were available to the Shire of Leonora:

- switch off Councils analogue self-help TV transmitters and advise the residents that they will now have to install VAST
satellite decoders on every television in their house and a satellite dish on the roof;

- upgrade the self-help site to transmit in a digital format.

There are issues with both options.
Option 1

If Council decides to pull the plug on the self-help site there will be no further terrestrial (of-the-air) signal. This will have a
profound effect on motels, hotels, caravan parks, schools, hospitals, multi-dwelling buildings and digital head-ends. These
will cost between $10,000 to over $60,000 to supply and install depending on the number of rooms and televisions. Keep in
mind that all the existing televisions would also have to be replaced with digital TV’s too as motels particularly are not likely
to put a set-top-box in each room which could easily be stolen.

Caravan travellers who have a television in their van will be unable to receive any television signal because the self-help TV
transmitters have been switched off. This means that every caravan traveller visiting the region will need to have their own
satellite decoder and satellite dish and use a satellite finder to locate the position of the satellite every time they stop (in most
rural shires). From the feedback received, caravan travellers are likely not to stay over-night or for any length of time in areas
where there is no terrestrial TV service.

Residents may direct their frustration and angst at council if they are forced to pay the $350 shortfall to have the VAST
service installed. The installer will receive a $400 subsidy from the Federal Government and then charge the resident the
difference, hence the $350. However, this assumes that the household only has one television. If they have more then they
will be up for an extra $279 for each TV plus a satellite splitter and possible cabling plus labour. For an average household
with three TV’s then they would have approximately $1,200 over and above the Satellite Subsidy Scheme rebate. You could
hardly call this free-to-air TV. Worse still is that a VAST satellite decoder will only provide high definition picture and sound
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quality if the householder also has a HD digital TV. So householders will need both a VAST decoder (for each TV) and a
digital TV.

Option 2

The alternative is to upgrade the existing self-help site to digital. With current equipment pricing the cost would be between
$56,000 and $100,000 for each self-help site. With five new digital transmitters we would be broadcasting the complete
digital bouquet of 17 digital channels (not all are available in WA yet. Initially there would be 12 channels and the remainder
would follow — no further equipment required).

The issue here is that the digital signal would be sourced from the new VAST satellite service. This service transmits an
MPEG4 signal while the Australian broadcast standard is MPEG2. That means that the signal must be converted back to
MPEG?2 before it can be broadcast. This is possible and included in the indicative costs above.

Last week the Australian Communications and Media Authority (ACMA) advised Peter Thompson that they are now
accepting transmission license applications for self-help sites to re-broadcast terrestrial digital TV via the VAST satellite
system.

STRA can prepare and submit the application and liaise with the ACMA on the shire’s behalf for the flat rate of $450.00 plus
GST plus direct ACMA costs. This would be subtracted from the installation cost if STRA are contracted to undertake the
digital upgrade.

STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT

Section 3.1(i) of the Local Government Act stats that ““the general function of a local government is to provide for the good
government of persons in its district.”

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

An amount of $11,000.00 is included in the current budget for unexpected maintenance issues, relative to the current
transmission site and equipment breakdown. The transmission license application fee to rebroadcast terrestrial digital TV
could be sourced from these funds in this current year.

The estimate, $90,000.00 to $100,000.00 to upgrade the existing site would need to be considered in the 2012/2013 Budget.
The Shire’s Forward Capital Works Plan indicates external funding will be sought for the upgrades, however there seems to
be a limited pool available. The Forward Capital Works Planning — Sub — Project Report provides the following detail:

Cost $280,000.00; and funding sources

e Shire of Leonora $80,000.00
e Country Local Government Fund $100,000.00
e Other Commonwealth Government $100,000.00

The above costs were probably realistic when the Forward Capital Works Report was compiled.

As Peter Thompson has advised, equipment prices have come down in recent months and may even reduce further as time
goes by.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

The Digital Television Switchover will mean that all television viewers in Australia will have access to the full range of free-
to-air digital television services as a result of the new satellite television service.

The new satellite service will bring to those viewers the range of television services long enjoyed by Australians in capital
cities.
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RECOMMENDATIONS
That Council resolve to:
1) engage Satellite Television and Radio Australia to prepare and submit a transmission license application for the
Leonora self-help site to enable the re-broadcast of terrestrial digital TV via the VAST satellite system; and
2) engage Satellite Television and Radio Australia to undertake the digital upgrade provided new estimates of costs

are provided prior to the 31 May, 2012; and
3) that estimate of costs be included in the 2012/2013 Budget to enable the upgrade to proceed.

VOTING REQUIREMENT
Simple majority required.
COUNCIL DECISION
Moved Cr GW Baker, Seconded Cr SJ Heather, that Council resolve to:
1) engage Satellite Television and Radio Australia to prepare and submit a transmission license application for the
Leonora self-help site to enable the re-broadcast of terrestrial digital TV via the VAST satellite system; and
2) engage Satellite Television and Radio Australia to undertake the digital upgrade provided new estimates of costs
are provided prior to the 31 May, 2012; and
3) that estimate of costs be included in the 2012/2013 Budget to enable the upgrade to proceed.

CARRIED (7 VOTES TO 0)
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10.0 REPORTS OF OFFICERS
10.2 DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
10.2(A) MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBMISSION TO: Meeting of Council
Meeting Date:
AGENDA REFERENCE: 10.2 (A) 11
SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Statements
LOCATION / ADDRESS: Leonora
NAME OF APPLICANT: Shire of Leonora
FILE REFERENCE: Nil

AUTHOR, DISCLOSURE OF ANY INTEREST AND DATE OF REPORT
NAME: Tanya Browning

OFFICER: Deputy Chief Executive Officer
INTEREST DISCLOSURE: Nil

DATE: 8" November, 2011

BACKGROUND

In complying with the Local Government Financial Management Regulations 1996, a monthly statement of financial activity
must be submitted to an Ordinary Council meeting within 2 months after the end of the month to which the statement relates.
The statement of financial activity is a complex document but gives a complete overview of the “cash” financial position as
at the end of each month. The statement of financial activity for each month must be adopted by Council and form part of the
minutes.

It is understood that parts of the statement of financial activity have been submitted to Ordinary Council meetings previously.
In reviewing the Regulations the complete statement of financial activity is to be submitted, along with the following reports
that are not included in the statement.

Monthly Financial Statements submitted for adoption include:

(a) Statement of Financial Activity — 31% October, 2011
(b) Compilation Report
(c) Material Variances — 31% October, 2011

STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT

Part 4 — Financial reports—s. 6.4
34. Financial activity statement report —s. 6.4
(1A) In this regulation —
committed assets means revenue unspent but set aside under the annual budget for a specific purpose.

34. 1) A local government is to prepare each month a statement of financial activity reporting on the revenue and
expenditure, as set out in the annual budget under regulation 22(1)(d), for that month in the following
detail —

(a) annual budget estimates, taking into account any expenditure incurred for an additional purpose
under section 6.8(1)(b) or (c);

(b) budget estimates to the end of the month to which the statement relates;

(c) actual amounts of expenditure, revenue and income to the end of the month to which the statement
relates;

(d) material variances between the comparable amounts referred to in paragraphs (b) and (c); and
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e the net current assets at the end of the month to which the statement relates.
34, 2 Each statement of financial activity is to be accompanied by documents containing —
(@) an explanation of the composition of the net current assets of the month to which the statement
relates, less committed assets and restricted assets;
(b) an explanation of each of the material variances referred to in subregulation (1)(d); and
© such other supporting information as is considered relevant by the local government.
34. (3) The information in a statement of financial activity may be shown —
€)] according to nature and type classification; or
(b) by program; or
() by business unit.
34. (€))] A statement of financial activity, and the accompanying documents referred to in subregulation (2), are to
be —
@ presented at an ordinary meeting of the council within 2 months after the end of the month to
which the statement relates; and
(b) recorded in the minutes of the meeting at which it is presented.
34. (5) Each financial year, a local government is to adopt a percentage or value, calculated in accordance with

the AAS, to be used in statements of financial activity for reporting material variances.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS
There are no policy implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.
STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS
There are no strategic implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.
RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Monthly Financial Statements for the month ended 31* October, 2011 consisting of:
(d) Statement of Financial Activity — 31% October, 2011
(e Compilation Report
(j] Material Variances — 31% October, 2011
be accepted.
VOTING REQUIREMENT
Simple Majority
COUNCIL DECISION

Moved Cr RA Norrie, Seconded Cr SJ Heather, that the Monthly Financial Statements for the month ended 31% October,
2011 consisting of:

€)] Statement of Financial Activity — 31" October, 2011
(b) Compilation Report
(c) Material Variances — 31% October, 2011

be accepted.
CARRIED (7 VOTES TO 0)
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SHIRE OF LEONORA

MONTHLY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011
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SHIRE OF LEONORA
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1,2

General Purpose Funding
Law, Order, Public Safety

Health

Education and Welfare

Housing

Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture

Transport

Economic Services

Other Property and Services

(Expenses)
Governance

1,2

General Purpose Funding
Law, Order, Public Safety

Health

Education and Welfare

Housing

Community Amenities

Recreation & Culture

Transport

Economic Services

Other Property and Services

Adjustments for Non-Cash

(Revenue) and Expenditure

(Profit)/Loss on Asset Disposals 4

Depreciation on Assets

Capital Revenue and (Expenditure)

Purchase Land and Buildings

Purchase Infrastructure Assets - Roads
Purchase Infrastructure Assets - Other
Purchase Plant and Equipment

Purchase Furniture and Equipment
Proceeds from Disposal of Assets

Transfers to Reserves (Restricted Assets)
Transfers from Reserves (Restricted Assets)

DO WWWWW

Net Current Assets July 1 B/Fwd 7
Net Current Assets Year to Date 7
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NOTE 31 October 31 October
2011 2011 2011/12
Actual Y-T-D Budget Budget
$ $ $

320 636 1,900
213,790 198,066 1,105,205
3,952 4,420 15,080
8,560 4,776 34,328
47,491 26,480 97,352
13,307 14,280 42,920
76,201 28,796 86,760
79,759 41,757 209,453
242 174 862,725 3,477,040
96,261 257,406 607,836
61,387 48,400 145,200
843,202 1,487,742 5,823,074
(124,798) (136,573) (401,765)
(89,820) (97,627) (292,867)
(40,940) (53,730) (160,682)
(240,741) (179,086) (493,590)
(141,203) (148,501) (418,181)
(2,774) (5,920) 0
(123,817) (112,054) (406,090)
(302,246) (333,269) (974,917)
(1,251,117) (1,971,787) (5,852,051)
(327,962) (488,046) (1,425,662)
(97,192) (131,369) (70,008)
(2,742,610) (3,657,962) (10,495,813)
85,785 963,204 163,085
481,529 481,065 1,443,137
(217,995) (400,000) (1,293,000)
0 0 (323,243)
(3,818) (150,000) (861,310)
(136,352) (573,196) (828,196)
(5,700) (15,000) (15,000)
448,518 0 1,231,453
(4,950) (30,523) (91,570)
0 23,823 71,470
257,467 478,170 478,170
3,787,290 3,305,066 0
(4,782,214) (4,697,743) (4,697,743)

Amount Raised from Rates 8

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Variances
Budget to
Actual
Y-T-D
%

(49.69%)
7.94%
(10.59%)
79.23%
79.35%
(6.81%)
164.62%
91.01%
(71.93%)
(62.60%)
26.83%
(43.32%)

8.62%
8.00%
23.80%
(34.43%)
4.91%
53.14%
(10.50%)
9.31%
36.55%
32.80%
26.02%
25.02%

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
100.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
83.78%
100.00%

46.16%
(14.59%)
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this statement of
financial activity are:

(a) Basis of Accounting
This statement is a special purpose financial report, prepared in accordance with applicable Australian
Australian Accounting Standards, other mandatory professional reporting requirements and the Local
Government Act 1995 (as amended) and accompanying regulations (as amended).

(b) The Local Government Reporting Entity
All Funds through which the Council controls resources to carry on its functions have been
included in this statement.

In the process of reporting on the local government as a single unit, all transactions and balances
between those funds (for example, loans and transfers between Funds) have been eliminated.

Council currently hold no funds on behalf of other entities.

(c) Rounding Off Figures
All figures shown in this statement, other than a rate in the dollar, are rounded to the nearest dollar.

(d) Rates, Grants, Donations and Other Contributions
Rates, grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the local
government obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions. Control over assets
acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating period or, where earlier, upon
receipt of the rates.

(e) Goods and Services Tax
In accordance with recommended practice, revenues, expenses and assets capitalised are stated net
of any GST recoverable. Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of applicable GST.

(f) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
included as short-term borrowings in current liabilities.

(g) Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30 - 90 day terms, are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any allowance
for uncollectible amounts.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be

uncollectible are written off when identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is
objective evidence that they will not be collectible.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Inventories
General
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventories held from trading are classified as current even if not expected to be realised in the next 12
months.

Land Held for Resale

Land purchased for development and/or resale is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost includes the cost of acquisition, development and interest incurred on the financing of that land
during its development. Interest and holding charges incurred after development is complete are
recognised as expenses.

Revenue arising from the sale of property is recognised in the operating statement as at the time of
signing a binding contract of sale.

Land held for resale is classified as current except where it is held as non-current based on Council’s
intentions to release for sale.

(i) Fixed Assets
All assets are initially recognised at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as
consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal
consideration, cost is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition. The cost of non-current assets
constructed by the Municipality includes the cost of all materials used in the construction, direct labour
on the project and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead.

Certain asset classes may be revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially
different from fair value. Assets carried at fair value are to be revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure
the carrying amount does not differ materially from that determined using fair value at reporting date.

(i) Depreciation of Non-Current Assets
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their useful
lives in @ manner which reflects the consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
those assets.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis, using rates which are reviewed each reporting
period. Major depreciation periods are:

Buildings 30 to 50 years
Furniture and Equipment 2 to 15 years
Plant and Equipment 51to 15 years
Infrastructure 10 to 40 years
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment
In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards the Council's assets, other than inventories, are
assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication they may be impaired.

Where such an indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset is made
in accordance with AASB 136 "Impairment of Assets" and appropriate adjustments made.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement.

For non-cash generating assets such as roads, drains, public buildings and the like, value in use is
represented by the depreciated replacement cost of the asset.

At the time of preparing this report, it is not possible to estimate the amount of impairment losses
(if any) as at 30 June 2012.

In any event, an impairment loss is a non-cash transaction and consequently, has no impact on
the Monthly Statement of Financial Position from a budgetary perspective.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost. They represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Municipality prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the
Municipality becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and
services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Employee Benefits
The provisions for employee benefits relates to amounts expected to be paid for long service
leave, annual leave, wages and salaries and are calculated as follows:

(i) Wages, Salaries, Annual Leave and Long Service Leave (Short-term Benefits)

The provision for employees’ benefits to wages, salaries, annual leave and long service leave
expected to be settled within 12 months represents the amount the municipality has a present
obligation to pay resulting from employees services provided to balance date. The provision has
been calculated at nominal amounts based on remuneration rates the Council expects to pay
and includes related on-costs.

(i) Annual Leave and Long Service Leave (Long-term Benefits)

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as
the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national
government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match as closely as possible, the estimated
future cash outflows. Where Council does not have the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond
12 months, the liability is recognised as a current liability.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities that are
yield related are included as part of the carrying amount of the loans and borrowings.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Council has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred except where they are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Where this is the case, they are
capitalised as part of the cost of the particular asset.

(o) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when: The council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

(p) Current and Non-Current Classification

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to
the time when each asset or liability is expected to be settled. The asset or liability is classified as
current if it is expected to be settled within the next 12 months, being the Council’s operational cycle. In
the case of liabilities where Council does not have the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12
months, such as vested long service leave, the liability is classified as current even if not expected to be
settled within the next 12 months. Inventories held for trading are classified as current even if not
expected to be realised in the next 12 months except for land held for resale where it is held as non-
current based on Council’s intentions to release for sale.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

SHIRE OF LEONORA President:

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

2. STATEMENT OF OBJECTIVE

In order to discharge its responsibilities to the community, the Council has developed a set of
operational and financial objectives. These objectives have been established both on an overall
basis and for each of its broad activities/programs.

Council operations as disclosed in this statement encompass the following service orientated
activities/programs:

GOVERNANCE

Includes costs and revenues associated with the President and Councillors in the exercise
of their obligations as a governing body. Iltems of expenditure include conference, travel,
meeting attendance fees, presidential allowance, receptions, donations, subscriptions and
phone rentals. Costs of advertising and conducting elections are also included. Revenues
include election nomination fees and reimbursements by members for private expenses.

An administration cost is also allocated which enables staff to process Council Meeting
procedures, implement all government decisions and conduct Council meetings. Cost of
conducting audit of Council books of accounts and procedures is also include under this heading.

GENERAL PURPOSE FUNDING

1 Rates

(a) GRV (gross rental value) refers to property rates for Leonora, Gwalia, Leinster and Agnew
town sites and operational mines and associated infrastructure.

(b) UV (unimproved value) refers to mining properties and tenements (other than mines and
other associated infrastructure) and includes prospecting licences, exploration licences and
mining leases. It also refers to broad acre rural pastoral properties.

(c) Additional rates and rates written back refer mainly to mining rates where tenements are granted
or surrendered following the adoption of the budget.

(d) Administration charge refers to the charge levied on ratepayers electing to make payment of
rates on the offered instalment plan and is based on the actual cost involved in administering
this process

(e) Administration costs allocated are the costs of maintaining records, levying and collecting
all rates.

2 Grants

(a) Grants Commission - a general purpose grant allocated annually by the Federal Government
to all local governments. The amount is determined by various formulae devised by the Grants
Commission, with a significant component being based on population.

(b) Roads Grant - An untied road grant allocated by the Federal Government and again
distributed by the Grants Commission utilising a pre-determined formula.

(c) Administration costs allocated to grants refers to the costs associated in collection of Federal
Government grants including provision and updating of data used in grants commission
formula.

3 Interest from Investments
Includes interest received on surplus funds invested throughout the year from both operating and
reserve accounts.

LAW, ORDER, PUBLIC SAFETY

Costs and revenues associated with animal control within the Shire and also includes fire
insurance, dog control and registration.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

SHIRE OF LEONORA President:

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

2. STATEMENT OF OBJECTIVE (Continued)

HEALTH

Costs and revenues associated with compliance with the Health Act including inspections and
approvals, food quality control, mosquito control, septic tank inspection/control, food hygiene
inspection/control, contribution to doctors expenses, Royal Flying Doctor donation and
notification of disease.

EDUCATION AND WELFARE
Provision of support for education and aged and disabled facilities within the district for the
betterment of the residents.

HOUSING

Costs of maintaining Council owned accommodation units and collection of rentals paid by
staff for use of those buildings. Costs that can be accurately attributed to other

programs are allocated. Revenue associated with a State Government owned house

by way of loan repayments to Council are also included.

Accommodation units include 3 houses, 2 duplexes and a single persons quarters.
COMMUNITY AMENITIES

Costs of collection and disposal of domestic and commercial refuse for town site of Leonora
and Gwalia and maintenance of the landfill refuse site. Revenue collection by way of an
annual fee for this service which is included on rate assessment notices.

Costs associated with review and administration of Council's Town Planning Scheme.
Provision of Christmas decorations in Leonora Town site.

Operation of the Leonora Cemetery.

RECREATION AND CULTURE

Provision and maintenance of Council owned parks, gardens and grassed oval/recreation
ground at Leonora and a contribution to similar facilities within Leinster town site.

Costs of operation and maintenance of a purpose built recreation centre which includes
indoor basketball court, two squash courts, kitchen, gymnasium and associated facilities

and revenues collected from the public for use of these facilities.

Costs of maintenance of Council owned and provided television and radio re-transmission
service which includes GWN, WIN and SBS television and WAFM and ABC fine music radio.

Costs and revenues associated with the operation and maintenance of library facilities at
Leonora in conjunction with the Library Board of Western Australia.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

SHIRE OF LEONORA President:

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

2. STATEMENT OF OBJECTIVE (Continued)

TRANSPORT

Maintenance and improvements of 1,300 kilometres of Council controlled unsealed roads,

town site footpaths and streets, drainage control, street cleaning and provision and maintenance
of street trees. Costs of providing electricity for steel lights in the Leonora/Gwalia town sites

and maintenance of Council's works depot and associated infrastructure.

Operation, maintenance and management of Leonora Aerodrome including runways,
runway lighting, tarmac and terminal building and gardens. Purchase of aviation fuel for
resale to aircraft operators.

Revenues by way of landing fees and Head Tax charges charged to all aircraft with the
exception of the Royal Flying Doctors Service, lease/renting of building to all users of
facilities and charges for fuel supplied to aircraft.

ECONOMIC SERVICES
Costs associated with tourism promotion throughout the Shire including employment of a
Curator/Promotion Officer at the Gwalia Museum and historic precinct.

Contribution to employment of a Goldfields/Esperance Development Officer operating from
Shire Offices - Leonora.

Costs and revenues associated with building control under building regulations, including
inspections and issuing building permits.

OTHER PROPERTY & SERVICES
Costs and revenues for private hire of Council machinery and operators for completion of
private works for ratepayers and others.

Costing allocation pools including administration, overheads, plant operation costs and

salaries and wages which are all individually detailed and then allocated throughout all
previously mentioned operating activities, works and services.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

SHIRE OF LEONORA President:

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

31 October
2011 2011/12
3. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS Actual Budget

$ $
The following assets have been acquired during
the period under review:
By Program
Governance
Upgrade Boardroom IT/Furniture FE 5,700 15,000
Health
Health Vehicle (4L) PE 41,923 41,652
Doctor Vehicle (3L) PE 41,920 41,652
Education and Welfare
Redesign Youth Centre Entrance LB 5,797 8,000
Youth Centre - External Refurbishment LB 1,690 60,000
Housing
Construct 4x2 House LB 0 400,000
Community Amenities
Garbage Truck PE 0 360,000
Caravan Toilet Dump LB 10,508 40,000
Renewal/Refurbish Streetscape 10 3,818 150,000
Public Toilets - Cemetery 10 0 180,000
Entry Statements - Cemetery 10 0 57,610
Recreation and Culture
Lawn Bowling Facility LB 200,000 320,000
Extension CRC Meeting Room LB 0 120,000
Transport
Haulmore Trailer PE 0 110,000
Ford Utility PE 0 36,000
Kubota Tractor PE 0 65,000
Isuzu Tip Truck PE 0 80,000
Extension Street Lighting 10 0 100,000
Airport Apron Extension 10 0 348,700
Roads to Recovery IR 0 323,243
Economic Services
Carport - Info Centre LB 0 20,000
Restoration - Ken the Locomotive 10 0 25,000
Restoration - Patron's Guest House LB 0 285,000
Other Property and Services
Upgrade Store Room (Records) LB 0 40,000
CEO Vehicle (1L) PE 52,509 52,240
DCEO Vehicle (2L) PE 0 41,652

363,865 3,320,749
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

SHIRE OF LEONORA President:

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

31 October
2011 2011/12
3. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS (Continued) Actual Budget
$ $
By Class
Land Held for Resale LR 0 0
Land and Buildings LB 217,995 1,293,000
Infrastructure Assets - Roads IR 0 323,243
Infrastructure Assets - Parks and Ovals 10 3,818 861,310
Plant and Equipment PE 136,352 828,196
Furniture and Equipment FE 5,700 15,000
363,865 3,320,749
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SHIRE OF LEONORA

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

4. DISPOSALS OF ASSETS

Net Book Value Sale Proceeds Profit(Loss)
By Program Actual Actual Actual
2011 2011 2011
Actual Actual Actual
$ $ $
Health
Health Vehicle 38,764 30,909 (7,855)
Doctor Vehicle 37,862 29,091 (8,771)
Other Property & Services
CEO Vehicle 44,386 36,364 (8,022)
Other Community Amenities
Lot 6 Kurrajong 62,225 55,883 (6,342)
Lot 7 Kurrajong 61,918 55,883 (6,035)
Lot 17 Cavzer 135,977 120,194 (15,783)
Lot 18 Cavzer 153,171 120,194 (32,977)
534,303 448,518 (85,785)
Net Book Value Sale Proceeds Profit(Loss)
By Class Actual Actual Actual
2011 2011 2011
Actual Actual Actual
$ $ $
Plant & Equipment
Ford Falcon 44,386 36,364 (8,022)
Ford Falcon 37,862 29,091 (8,771)
Ford Sedan 38,764 30,909 (7,855)
Land & Buildings
Lot 6 Kurrajong 62,225 55,883 (6,342)
Lot 7 Kurrajong 61,918 55,883 (6,035)
Lot 17 Cavzer 135,977 120,194 (15,783)
Lot 18 Cavzer 153,171 120,194 (32,977)
534,303 448,518 (85,785)
Summary 2010/11
$
Profit on Asset Disposals 0
Loss on Asset Disposals (85,7835)
(85,785)

5. INFORMATION ON BORROWINGS
(a) Debenture Repayments

The Shire of Leonora has no borrowings.
(b) New Debentures 2011/12

No new debentures were raised during the reporting period.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

SHIRE OF LEONORA President:

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

31 October
2011 2011/12
Actual Budget
$ $
6. RESERVES
Cash Backed Reserves
(@) Long Service Leave Reserve
Opening Balance 129,055 129,055
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve 2,078 64,869
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve 0 (26,750)
131,133 167,174
(b) Fire Disaster Reserve
Opening Balance 12,691 12,691
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve 204 2,441
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve 0 0
12,895 15,132
(c) Plant Purchase Reserve
Opening Balance 992 992
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve 0 30
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve 0 0
992 1,022
(d) Bowling Green Reserve
Opening Balance 44,720 44,720
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve 720 0
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve 0 (44,720)
45,440 0
(e) Annual Leave Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 120,974 120,974
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve 1,948 24,230
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve 0 0
122,922 145,204
Total Reserves 313,382 328,532

All of the above reserve accounts are supported by money held in financial institutions.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

31 October
2011 2011/12
Actual Budget
. RESERVES (Continued) $ $

Summary of Transfers
To Cash Backed Reserves
Transfers to Reserves
Long Service Leave Reserve 2,078 64,869
Fire Disaster Reserve 204 2,441
Plant Purchase Reserve 0 30
Bowling Green Reserve 720 0
Annual Leave Reserve 1,948 24,230

4,950 91,570
Transfers from Reserves
Long Service Leave Reserve 0 (26,750)
Fire Disaster Reserve 0 0
Plant Purchase Reserve 0 0
Bowling Green Reserve 0 (44,720)
Annual Leave Reserve 0 0

0 (71,470)

Total Transfer to/(from) Reserves 4,950 20,100

In accordance with council resolutions in relation to each reserve account, the purpose for which
the reserves are set aside are as follows:

Long Service Leave Reserve
- This reserve is to offset Council's leave liability to it's employees.
Fire Disaster Reserve
- This reserve will assist in the provision of emergency contingencies in the case of fire disaster.
Plant Replacement Reserve
- to be used for the purchase of major plant.
Bowling Green Reserve
- to be used for the maintenance of the bowling green.
Annual Leave Reserve
- This reserve is to offset Council's annual leave liability to it's employees.

None of the above reserves are expected to be used within a set period as further transfers
to the reserve accounts are expected before funds are utilised.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

31 October Brought
2011 Forward
Actual 1-Jul
$ $
. NET CURRENT ASSETS
Composition of Estimated Net Current Asset Position
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash - Unrestricted 3,765,174 340,896
Cash - Restricted 313,382 308,432
Receivables 639,108 306,307
Inventories 6,022 44,700
4,723,686 1,000,335
LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables and Provisions (623,014) (434,436)
NET CURRENT ASSET POSITION 4,100,672 565,899
Less: Cash - Reserves - Restricted (313,382) (308,432)
NET CURRENT ASSET POSITION 3,787,290 257,467

-25-



8. RATING INFORMATION

SHIRE OF LEONORA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

Rate in Number Rateable
RATE TYPE $ of Value 2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 2011/12
Properties $ Rate Interim Back Total
Revenue Rates Rates Revenue Budget
$ $ $ $ $
Differential General Rate
GRV 0.0561 581 16,424,336 918,301 5,076 0 923,377 912,708
UV Pastoral 0.0464 26 1,239,156 57,435 0 0 57,435 57,435
UV Other 0.1236 1,219 28,279,450 3,469,662 46,340 0 3,516,002| 3,471,460
Sub-Totals 1,826 45,942,942 4,445,398 51,416 0 4,496,814| 4,441,603
Minimum
Minimum Rates $
GRV 258 102 156,696 24,510 150 0 24,660 25,284
UV Pastoral 258 4 15,156 1,032 0 0 1,032 1,032
UV Other 258 1,033 1,180,949 270,316] (10,608) 0 259,708 269,824
Sub-Totals 1,139 1,352,801 295,858| (10,458) 0 285,400 296,140
4,782,214 4,737,743
Write-offs 0 (40,000)
Totals 4,782,214 4,697,743

All land except exempt land in the Shire of Leonora is rated according to its Gross Rental Value (GRV) in town sites or Unimproved Value (UV)

in the remainder of the Shire.

The general rates detailed above for the 2011/12 financial year have been determined by Council on the basis of raising the revenue required
to meet the deficiency between the total estimated expenditure proposed in the budget and the estimated revenue to be received from all sources
other than rates and also bearing considering the extent of any increase in rating over the level adopted in the previous year.

The minimum rates have been determined by Council on the basis that all ratepayers must make a reasonable contribution to the cost of the Local

Government services/facilities.

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2011 TO 31 OCTOBER 2011

9. TRUST FUNDS

Council holds no funds on behalf of other entities
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Shire of Leonora
Material Variances as at 31st October 2011

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Variances 2010/11 Budget to Actual
Month Ended 31/10/2011

your information.

In accordance with your adopted policy ($15000.00 Variance) the following accounts are reported for

ACCOUNT NAME ACTUAL Year To Date BUDGET _ DIFFERENCE REASON FOR VARIATION
Income
1030005 - UV Mining Rate - $0.1236 3,482,752.76 3,453,959.00 $ 28,793.76 Valuation adjustments received in early July, resulted in increase in rate revenue
1030009 - Rates Addition UV 35,676.55 11,672.00 $ 24,004.55 More valuation adjustments and tenement grants received than anticipated
1101410 - Charges Domestic Refuse Rem 54,880.00 19,736.00 $ 35,144.00 Budget split is over 12 months (requires amendment to correctly reflect)
1117001 - CRC Operational Wages Grant 31,500.00 000 $ 31,500.00 Income received earlier than anticipated
1122054 - Grant - RRG - Improvement Old 0.00 29,000.00 $ (29,000.00) No claim submitted for funds as yet
1122055 - Grant - RRG - Improvement Lec 0.00 26,667.00 $ (26,667.00) No claim submitted for funds as yet
1122056 - Blackspot MRWA 10-11 0.00 32,655.00 $ (32,655.00) No claim submitted for funds as yet
1122200 - Grants - MRWA Direct 0.00 91,199.00 $ (91,199.00) No claim submitted for funds as yet
1122213 - Natural Disaster Reinstatement 85,532.00 454,608.00 $ (369,076.00) Cost of Opening claim received, still awaiting other funds to be released
1132002 - Contribution Golden Gift 3,294.54 66,664.00 $ (63,369.46) Alteration to timing of budget programme
1134458 - Grant Income (Projects) 0.00 126,794.00 $ (126,794.00) Alteration to timing of budget programme
1136468 - Cont to Gold Treat Plant Feas 0.00 16,664.00 $  (16,664.00) Alteration to timing of budget programme
$3,693,635.85 § 4,329,618.00 $ (635,982.15)
Expenditure
E041160 - Subscriptions 28,447 .47 10,604.00 $ 17,843.47 Budget split is over 12 months (requires amendment to correctly reflect)
E041187 - Strategic Plan Development 0.00 26,000.00 $ (26,000.00) Alteration to timing of budget programme
E074075 - Doctor Top Up Salary 124,800.00 41,600.00 $ 83,200.00 Payment allocated in one lump sum and not instalments
E081005 - Youth Support Wages 2,432.88 26,472.00 $ (24,039.12) Budget amount listed at incorrect line (should be E082001)
E102300 - Loss on Disposal of Asset 0.00 19,297.00 $  (19,297.00) Alteration to timing of original programme
E107041 - Sale of Industrial Blocks (Costs 1,790.47 17,100.00 $ (15,309.53) Only 4 lots sold at auction, therefore less costs so far
E113298 - Depreciation Expense 22,064.25 5,429.00 $ 16,635.25 Further investigation required into postings in this account
E122043 - Road Maintenance Bush Gradi 69,700.00 93,336.00 $ (23,636.00) Alteration to timing of original programme
E122120 - Depot Maintenance 30,753.36 13,335.00 $ 17,418.36  Some works brought forward and carried out earlier
E122203 - Grant RRG-Old Agnew 58,793.24 14,500.00 $ 44,293.24 Alteration to timing of original programme
E122204 - Grant RRG-Leo Nambi 24,589.00 8,336.00 $ 16,253.00 Alteration to timing of original programme
E122205 - Leinster Agnew Shoulder Grad 56,535.00 20,000.00 $ 36,535.00 Alteration to timing of original programme
E122207 - RRG Kookynie Malcolm Road 11,385.00 52,122.00 $ (40,737.00) Alteration to timing of original programme
E122208 - RRG Leonora Mt Ida Road 10,485.35 36,904.00 $ (26,418.65) Alteration to timing of original programme
E122209 - Natural Disaster Reinstatemen 0.00 753,564.00 $ (753,564.00) Awaiting approval from FESA prior to commencing works
E126010 -Aerodrome Maintenance 56,616.04 32,664.00 $ 23,952.04 Alteration to timing of original programme (more works carried out earlier)
E126021 - Insurance - Aerodrome 0.00 18,382.00 $ (18,382.00) Invoice not yet received and entered (was due August 2011)
E132078 - Leonora Golden Gift (2,652.64) 133,336.00 $ (135,988.64) Reversal of cancelled cheque from 2010/11 period, alteration to timing of programme
E132097 - Italian Girls Gwalia 60,000.00 20,000.00 $ 40,000.00 Budget split is over 12 months (requires amendment to correctly reflect)
E136042 - Gold Treatment Feasability Stu 12,583.90 33,336.00 $ (20,752.10) Project has commenced, starting to trend back to budget estimates
E142210 - Accounting Fees 36,540.00 20,182.00 $ 16,358.00 Includes work for budget conversion and annual statement preparation
E142299 - Less Allocated to Programs (411,890.12) (384,791.00) $ (27,099.12) Some bulk payments made within program, will even out over a number of months
E143030 - Sick and Holiday Pay 11,201.04 37,550.00 $ (26,348.96) Less leave taken than budget estimate at YTD
E143290 - Less PWOH Allocated (128,380.60) (177,845.00) $ 49,464.40 Some bulk payments made within program, will even out over a number of months
E144010 - Fuels and Oils 126,123.96 70,000.00 $ 56,123.96 Includes misallocation of $44,000 for bulk diesel purchase
E144290 - Less POC Allocated (200,399.75) (164,750.00) $§  (35,649.75) Some bulk payments made within program, will even out over a number of months
$ 1,517.85 $ 776,663.00 $ (775,145.15)
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

UH Haines Norton
Chartered Accountants

—

08 November 2011

The Chief Executive Officer
Shire of Leonora

P O Box 56

LEONORA WA 6438

Dear Jim

ACCOUNTING SERVICE INFORMATION REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
31 OCTOBER 2011

We advise that we have completed the compilation of your Statutory Monthly Statement of Financial
Activity for the month ended 31 October 2011 and enclose our Compilation Report and Statements.

We are required under APES 315 Compilation of Financial Information to report certain matters in our
compilation report. Other matters which arise during the course of our compilation that we wish to bring to
your attention are raised in this report.

It should be appreciated that our procedures are designed primarily to enable us to compile the monthly
financial statement and therefore may not bring to light all weaknesses in systems and procedures, or all
financial matters of interest to management and Council, which may exist. However, we aim to use our
knowledge of the Shire's financial operations gained during our work to make comments and suggestions,
which, we hope, will be useful to you.

The Statement of Financial Position on page 2 of the report shows an opening budget surplus as at 1% July
2011 of $478,170. The actual opening balance at 1¥ July 2011 is calculated as $257,467, which is a
reduct1on of $220,703. This reduced opening balance amount may result in a deficit funding position as at
30" June 2012. We recommend the budget be amended to reflect this change in the opening position.
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Please note our report does not include details of the material variances between the year to date

information and year to date budget (as required by Local Government (Financial Management) ;
Regulation 34(1) (d)). Preparation of variance explanations requires knowledge held by Council =
Staff. -
Should you wish to discuss any matter relating to our service or any other matter, please do not hesitate to =
contact us. =

(W)
Yours faithfully ;

L

O

Paul Breman i

Director i

a

O
t: +61(0)8 9444 3400 16 Lakeside Corporate 24 Parkland Road Osborne Park Perth WA 6017 e . perth@uhyhn.com.au
f: +61(0)8 9444 3430 PO Box 1707 Osborne Park WA 6916 w: www.uhyhn.com

A network of independent firms in Australia and New Zealand and a member of Urbach Hacker Young International Limited, an international network of independent
accounting and consulting firms

UHY Haines Norton (WA) Pty Ltd as trustee - ABN 99 433 544 961 -29-

Liability limited by a schermne approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

UH! ,Haines Norton
Chartered Accountants

The Chief Executive Officer
Shire of Leonora

PO Box 56

LEONORA WA 6438

COMPILATION REPORT TO THE SHIRE OF LEONORA

We have compiled the accompanying Local Government special purpose financial statements of the Shire of
Leonora, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activity, a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes for the period ending 31 October 2011. The financial statements have been compiled to
meet compliance with the Local Government Act 1995 and associated Regulations.

The Responsibility of the Shire of Leonora

The Shire of Leonora are solely responsible for the information contained in the special purpose financial
statements and are responsible for the maintenance of an appropriate accounting system in accordance with the
relevant legislation.

Our Responsibility

On the basis of information provided by the Shire of Leonora we have compiled the accompanying special purpose
financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995, associated
Regulations and APES 315 Compilation of Financial Information.

Our procedures use accounting expertise to collect, classify and summarise the financial information, which the
Shire of Leonora provided, in compiling the financial statements. Our procedures do not include verification or
validation procedures. No audit or review has been performed and accordingly no assurance is expressed.
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The Local Government special purpose financial statements were compiled exclusively for the benefit of the Shire
of Leonora. We do not accept responsibility to any other person for the contents of the special purpose financial
statements.

Jid Hounso /VM')‘W»(W‘ﬂfy Lfé/

UHY Haines Norton (WA) Pty Ltd
Chartered Accountants

LAY

Paul Breman
Director

[ AT = U [ G R (N BT

08 November 2011

CHOICE

t: +61(0)8 9444 3400 16 Lakeside Corporate 24 Parkland Road Osborne Park Perth WA 6017 e : perth@uhyhn.com.au
f: +61(0)8 9444 3430 PO Box 1707 Osborne Park WA 6916 w: www.uhyhn.com

A network of independent firms in Australia and New Zealand and a member of Urbach Hacker Young International Limited, an international network of independent
accounting and consulting firms

UHY Haines Norton (WA) Pty Ltd as trustee - ABN 99 433 544 961 -5U-
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

10.0 REPORTS OF OFFICERS
10.2 DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
10.2(B) ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT

SUBMISSION TO: Meeting of Council
Meeting Date: 15" November, 2011
AGENDA REFERENCE: 10.2 (B) 11
SUBJECT: Accounts for Payment
LOCATION / ADDRESS: Nil
NAME OF APPLICANT: Nil
FILE REFERENCE: Nil

AUTHOR, DISCLOSURE OF ANY INTEREST AND DATE OF REPORT

NAME: Tanya Browning

OFFICER: Deputy Chief Executive Officer

INTEREST DISCLOSURE: Nil

DATE:

BACKGROUND

Attached statement consists of accounts paid by Delegated Authority represented by Direct Bank Deposits and Cheques
14984 to 15029 totalling $238,617.07, and accounts paid by Council Authorisation represented by Cheques 15030 to 15119
and totalling $225,724.51.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

There are no strategic implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That accounts paid by Delegated Authority represented by Direct Bank Deposits and Cheques 14984 to 15029 and totalling
$238,617.07, and accounts paid by Council Authorisation represented by Cheques 15030 to 15119 and totalling $225,724.51
be authorised for payment.

VOTING REQUIREMENT

Simple Majority
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

COUNCIL DECISION

Moved Cr MWV Taylor, Seconded Cr P Craig, that accounts paid by Delegated Authority represented by Direct Bank
Deposits and Cheques 14984 to 15029 totalling $238,617.07, and accounts paid by Council Authorisation represented by
Cheques 15030 to 15119 and totalling $225,724.51 be authorised for payment.

CARRIED (7 VOTES TO 0)
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Shire of Leonora

Monthly Report - List of Accounts Paid by Delegated Authority

Submitted to Council on the 15" November, 2011

The following list of accounts has been paid via direct bank transactions since the previous list of accounts, totalling
$52,154.20

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DZ;;S;E[S Date Name Item Payment
1 D/D 19/10/2011 | Shire of Leonora Salaries & Wages PPE- 19/10/11 49,267.00
1 (B/S) 21/10/2011 | Toyota Financial Services GEDV Vehicle - October 2011 1,476.05
1 (B/S) 21/10/2011 | National Australia Bank Bank Fee - October 2011 108.50
1 (B/S) 24/10/2011 | Alliance Equipment Finance Lease on Photocopier - October 2011 1,121.55
1 (B/S) 31/10/2011 | National Australia Bank Bank Fee - October 2011 181.10

GRAND TOTAL $52,154.20
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Shire of Leonora

Monthly Report - List of Accounts Paid by Delegated Authority

Submitted to Council on the 15" November, 2011

The following list of accounts has been paid under delegation, by the Chief Executive Officer, since the previous list of
accounts. Cheques numbered from 14984 to 15029 totalling $186,462.87

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Payment

Cheque Date Name Item By
Delegated

Authority

14984 13/10/2011 | Judy Carter Bus Bond Refund 200.00
14985 13/10/2011 | Building Commission Building Com. Fee 13/11 36.00
14986 12/10/2011 | Custom Creative Carpentry Repairs — Child Care Centre 195.00
15001 17/10/2011 | Scottish Pacific Bus.Finance Tree Pruning and Western Power Pruning 22,000.00
15002 17/10/2011 | Australian Mining Advisors Consulting work for Custom Mill project - Sept 4,087.50
15003 17/10/2011 | Image Lab Gwalia Website Edits 4,026.00
15004 19/10/2011 | LGRCEU Union Fee PPE- 19/10/11 17.40
15005 19/10/2011 | Shire of Leonora Tax/Rent PPE- 19/10/11 17,853.01
15006 19/10/2011 | W.A.L.G.S.P. Superannuation PPE - 19/10/11 9,267.22
15007 19/10/2011 | Child Support Agency Child Support PPE - 19/10/11 619.85
15008 19/10/2011 | P.J.J.D. Nominees Pty Ltd Contract Grading - Cheque Cancelled 8,712.00
15009 19/10/2011 | Australian Taxation Office September 2011 BAS 10,149.00
15010 19/10/2011 | Building Commission Building Commission Fee - B/L No: 12/11 35.00
15011 19/10/2011 | Construction Training Fund Construction Training Fee - B/L No: 12/11 193.40
15012 21/10/2011 | Lou Vaccaro Contract Grading 10,516.00
15013 24/10/2011 | Kate McMillan Website design and Development for Gwalia 1,540.00
15014 24/10/2011 | Majewski Family Fund Majewski Family Financial Assistance 4,000.00
15016 24/10/2011 | Sparlon Electrical Various Electrical Repairs 2,146.10
15017 24/10/2011 | Telstra Camp Requisites 68.07
15018 25/10/2011 | Garry J Agnew Health & Building Contract Cancelled Chqg 8,749.73
15019 26/10/2011 | Shire Of Leonora - Petty Cash | Petty Cash Recoup 328.50
15020 26/10/2011 | R. Young Contract Grading 9,460.00
15021 31/10/2011 | Office National Kalgoorlie Amount outstanding from August invoice 101.70
15022 31/10/2011 | Forrestania Gold NL Refund - Payment Made D/D By Error 705.52
15023 2/11/2011 | LGRCEU Union Fee PPE - 2/11/11 17.40
15024 2/11/2011 | Shire of Leonora Tax/Rent PPE - 2/11/11 24,923.79
15025 2/11/2011 | W.A.L.G.S.P. Superannuation PPE - 2/11/11 10,892.67
15026 2/11/2011 | Child Support Agency Child Support PPE - 2/11/11 618.07
15027 2/11/2011 | Horizon Power Various Power Usage 21,815.99
15028 2/11/2011 | Telstra Various Phone Usage 383.95
15029 2/11/2011 | Greg Loughlin Contract Grading 12,804.00
GRAND TOTAL | $186,462.87
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Shire of Leonora

Monthly Report - List of Accounts Paid by Authorisation of Council

Submitted to Council on the 15" November, 2011

Cheques numbered from 15030 to 15119 totaling $225,724.51 submitted to each member of the Council on Tuesday 15"
November, 2011 have been checked and are fully supported by remittances and duly certified invoices with checks being

carried out as to prices, computations and costing.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Cheque Date Name Item Payment
15030 15/11/2011 | Absolute Office Interiors Executive chairs for Boardroom 6,270.00
15031 15/11/2011 | Airport Lighting Specialists Supplies for Extensions - Leonora Airport 6,141.03
15032 15/11/2011 | Amcom IP Telephony Pty Ltd Medical Services Bill 521.27
15033 15/11/2011 | ATOM Supply Various Supplies for Depot 1,929.49
15034 15/11/2011 | Auslec Supplies for extension at Leonora Aerodrome 1,137.52
15035 15/11/2011 | Australian Com. Authority Licence Renewal Fees - Broadcasting 38.00
15036 15/11/2011 | Australias Golden Outback editorial in ’12 Aus's Golden Outback Planner 1,675.00
15037 15/11/2011 | BOC Limited Supplies for Depot 147.09
15038 15/11/2011 | Blder Promotion & Dev. Assoc. Activity Costs for Youth Camp 456.00
15039 15/11/2011 | Bridgestone Parts for P817 816.54
15040 15/11/2011 | Bunnings Building Supplies Pty Ltd | Various Tools and Supplies 1,385.57
15041 15/11/2011 | C&M Club of Australia RVTF Sign 405.00
15042 15/11/2011 | Canning Pool and Pump Centre Supplies for Pool Cleaning at 250 Queen Vic 352.85
15043 15/11/2011 | Central Hotel Meals/Accommodation + Drinks — Bowls Club 1,041.00
15044 15/11/2011 | Chubb Security Services Ltd ATM Maintenance Charges 1,981.67
15045 15/11/2011 | Coates Hire Roller Multi Tire Hire 5,717.25
15046 15/11/2011 | Corporate Express Stationary Order November 1,643.84
15047 15/11/2011 | Courier Australia Freight Costs 231.58
15048 15/11/2011 | Coyles Mower & Chainsaw Centre | Gardening supplies 749.00
15049 15/11/2011 | CR Hose Glassware Pty Ltd Glasses with Gold rimming for Gwalia Museum 876.90
15050 15/11/2011 | Custom Creative Carpentry Renovate Bathroom at Depot Quarters 4,427.50
15051 15/11/2011 | Des Taylor 2x Loader Tyres 4,510.00
15052 15/11/2011 | E. & M.J. Rosher Pty Ltd Belts for Mower - P 05 83.35
15053 15/11/2011 | Eagle Petroleum (WA) Pty Ltd Fuel costs 1,480.68
15054 15/11/2011 | Earth Australia Contracting Pty Ltd | Gas Refills 5,272.00
15055 15/11/2011 | Eastern Goldfields YMCA Inc Activity Expenses - Youth 5,373.50
15056 15/11/2011 | Express Yourself Printing Stationary — CRC/Museum 559.08
15057 15/11/2011 | FESA ESL Income Local Government 454.14
15058 15/11/2011 | Fitz Gerald Stategies Industrial Relation Services - 2011-2012 2,701.02
15059 15/11/2011 | Forman Bros Various Plumbing work 11,787.60
15060 15/11/2011 | French Bazaar Pty Ltd Gift Set - Information Centre 62.92
15061 15/11/2011 | Galaxy Embroidery and Printing Souvenirs for resale at Museum 899.36

Sub Total $71,127.75
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Shire of Leonora

Monthly Report - List of Accounts Paid by Authorisation of Council

Submitted to Council on the 15" November, 2011

Cheque Date Name Item Payment
Balance B/Fwd | $71,127.75

15062 15/11/2011 | Gemma Boucher Pool and cinema entry + lunch 283.90
15063 15/11/2011 | Goldfields Air Service Cancelled Cheque 0.00
15064 15/11/2011 | Goldfields Camp School Accommodation and Meals — Youth Camp 980.76
15065 15/11/2011 | Goldfields Commercial Security P/L | Security Checks and monitoring 921.75
15066 15/11/2011 | Goldfields Sport & Leisure Yellow "Jacks" and mats for Lawn Bowls 613.50
15067 15/11/2011 | Goldfields Truck Power Parts and Repairs - Various 3,023.77
15068 15/11/2011 | Goldline Distributors Delivery and supply of various Goods 1,432.41
15069 15/11/2011 Hannans Transport Pty Ltd Stove for Lot 289 Queen Victoria Street 55.00
15070 15/11/2011 Harvey Norman, Kalgoorlie Various electrical Goods 1,695.00
15071 15/11/2011 Horizon Power Cancelled Cheque 0.00
15072 15/11/2011 | J. F. Carter Presidential Allowance 12,000.00
15073 15/11/2011 | J.C. Kennedy LG Election Nomination Deposit 80.00
15074 15/11/2011 | Jason Signmakers Various Signs 11,320.32
15075 15/11/2011 Kalgoorlie Retravision Various Electrical Goods 8,789.00
15076 15/11/2011 Kenyon & Company Pty Ltd 2 CB Radios for Leonora Rifle Club 1,287.00
15077 15/11/2011 Kleenheat Gas Various Gas Cylinders 168.00
15078 15/11/2011 L & W Mitre 10 Galvanised Bucket 83.97
15079 15/11/2011 Landgate Valuation Expenses 1,502.60
15080 15/11/2011 Leinster Sports and RecAssoc. Sports Equipment 6,000.00
15081 15/11/2011 Leonora Bush Missions. Community Grant - Youth 6,000.00
15082 15/11/2011 Leonora Drive Connectors Various Tools 3,653.88
15083 15/11/2011 Leonora Post Office Post costs Museum, Library, Shire, MC 379.40
15084 15/11/2011 Leonora Supermarket and Hardware | Shire purchase for September 2011 551.48
15085 15/11/2011 LGIS Insurance Broking Vehicle and Plant Insurance Schedule 2,233.66
15086 15/11/2011 LGMA Conference costs 1,995.00
15087 15/11/2011 M.W.V. Taylor LG Election Nomination Deposit refund 80.00
15088 15/11/2011 Mackay Projects Pty Ltd Engineering Services - October 21,906.50
15089 15/11/2011 McMahon Burnett Transport Freight expenses 2,606.72
15090 15/11/2011 Mine Trades and Maintenance Plumbing for Gas Cooktop 11 Hoover Street 500.50
15091 15/11/2011 MOR Corporation Australia Goods for resale at Library/Info Centre 254.69
15092 15/11/2011 Munro & Wyllie Final Fee for Audit of Shire of Leonora 6,978.66
15093 15/11/2011 | Office National Kalgoorlie Printer Service 1,335.25
15094 15/11/2011 | On- Line Business Equipment Printer Service — CRC 270.59
15095 15/11/2011 Peter Craig. Deputy President Allowance 3,080.00
15096 15/11/2011 Powerchill Electrical & Refridge Electrical Repairs 2,555.30
15097 15/11/2011 PsiTech Pty Ltd Microsoft Office Prof. Plus Licence x 25 8,419.95
15098 15/11/2011 Public Libraries Western Australia Public Libraries of WA Membership 2011/12 150.00
15099 15/11/2011 RLG Mechanical Services Mechanical inspection for Airport Genset 173.80
Sub Total | $184,490.11
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Shire of Leonora

Monthly Report - List of Accounts Paid by Authorisation of Council

Submitted to Council on the 15" November, 2011

Cheque Date Name Item Payment
Balance B/Fwd 184,490.11
15100 15/11/2011 Ross Norrie - LG Election Nomination Deposit refund 80.00
15101 15/11/2011 | Sheridan's For Badges Plaque for Opening of Bowling facility 451.55
15102 15/11/2011 | Shire Of Leonora - General Bus Hire for 12/10 - 14/10 2011 - Youth 675.00
15103 15/11/2011 | Skippers Aviation Pty Ltd Flight costs 1,164.00
15104 15/11/2011 | Small Business Development Corp. | Tourism BOOST Workshop 80.00
15105 15/11/2011 | Stratco (WA) Pty Ltd Complete Shed kit for 289 Queen Vic 4,096.02
15106 15/11/2011 | Telstra Various Phone/Internet Costs 3,597.25
15107 15/11/2011 | Toll Ipec Pty Ltd Freight Costs 264.72
15108 15/11/2011 | Toll Priority Storage for Oct 2011 342.00
15109 15/11/2011 UHY Haines Norton Accounting Service Fee for October ‘11 6,050.00
15110 15/11/2011 | WA Country Health Service Rental of Surg and Cons rooms, NOV11 408.80
15111 15/11/2011 | Wajon Publishing Company Guide to Spring Wildflowers of WA 128.00
15112 15/11/2011 | Water Corporation Various Water Costs 1,451.85
15113 15/11/2011 | West Australian Newspapers Ltd Advertising charges - October 1,811.55
15114 15/11/2011 | Western Plant Hire (WA) Pty Ltd Plant Hire for October 8,580.00
15115 15/11/2011 | Westland Autos Nol Pty Ltd 40,000Km Service for 22 711.05
15116 15/11/2011 | WesTrac Pty Ltd Various Car Parts 8,677.30
15117 15/11/2011 | Whitehouse Hotel Lunches for Meetings 752.00
15118 15/11/2011 | Wren Qil Waste Disposal 998.25
15119 15/11/2011 | Wurth Australia Pty Ltd Tools and supplies for Depot 915.06
GRAND TOTAL $225,724.51
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

10.0 REPORTS OF OFFICERS
10.2 DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
10.2(C)  ANNUAL REPORT 2011 & GENERAL ELECTORS’ MEETING

SUBMISSION TO: Meeting of Council
Meeting Date: 15 November 2011
AGENDA REFERENCE: 10.2 (C) Nov 11
SUBJECT: Annual Report & General Electors’ Meeting
LOCATION / ADDRESS: Leonora
NAME OF APPLICANT: N/A
FILE REFERENCE: 1.8
AUTHOR: Tanya Browning
OFFICER: Deputy Chief Executive Officer

INTEREST DISCLOSURE: Nil

DATE: 8" November 2011

COMMENT:

In each financial year a local government is to prepare an Annual Report.

The draft Annual Report for the year ended 30" June, 2011 is attached for consideration and adoption, and a date for the
Annual Meeting of Electors should be set.

BACKGROUND

Section 5.54 (1 & 2) of the Local Government Act states that the Annual Report for a financial year is to be accepted by the
Local Government no later than 31% December in that year, or where the auditor’s report is not available until after that date,
no later than two (2) months after the auditor’s report becomes available.

The auditor’s report was received on the 7" November 2011.

Section 5.27 of the Local Government Act states that at least fourteen (14) days public notice must be given and the meeting
must be held no later than 56 days after Council accepts the Annual Report.

Therefore the earliest this meeting could be held is 30™ November 2011 and it must be held no later than 11" January 2012
should this report be adopted.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.
STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

There are no strategic implications resulting from the recommendation of this report.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Annual Report as presented for the year ended 30™ June 2011 be accepted and the General Meeting of Electors be
scheduled for Friday 16™ December 2011 commencing at 3:30pm in the Council Chamber, Leonora.

VOTING REQUIREMENT

Simple majority required.

COUNCIL DECISION

Moved Cr LR Petersen, Seconded Cr GW Baker, that the Annual Report as presented for the year ended 30" June 2011 be
accepted and the General Meeting of Electors be scheduled for Friday 16™ December 2011 commencing at 3:30pm in the

Council Chamber, Leonora.

CARRIED (7 VOTES TO 0)
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President:

Shire of Leonora

ANNUAL REPORT

For the year ending
30" JUNE 2011




Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

MESSAGE FROM THE SHIRE PRESIDENT

During 2010-11 there has been a great deal of regulatory change through the
Department for Local Government, which includes the Integrated Strategic Planning
Framework. This new framework is part of structural reform initiatives announced by
the Minister nearly two years ago, and has resulted in a great deal of work being
undertaken throughout the industry. The Shire of Leonora was very fortunate to be
partly prepared for this workload, through the preparation of a strategic plan (based on
community consultation), preparation for asset management planning, and a forward
capital works plan over the last two years.

Historically, Western Australia has been lagging in long term financial management
principles, and the Integrated Strategic Planning Framework seeks to address this
issue. It will place a greater focus on communities being engaged in the long term
planning of its future, through the development of a Strategic Community Plan. This
Strategic Community Plan will then form the basis of a Corporate Business Plan, from
which Asset Management, Workforce, and Long Term Financial Plans will result.
The greatest impact that this will have is moving away from annual budgeting cycles,
and instead, budgets will flow directly from the plans mentioned above. This will
assist to ensure that the objectives identified within the strategic community plan and
corporate business plan are adhered to, and not deviated from.

I am pleased to report that the Council and staff have been very proactive in long term
considerations of the future of the community, and are well placed to commence on
the journey ahead with regard to long term planning. The support and participation of
the community has been essential in the process, and I look forward to the continued
collaboration between Council and the community in the future.

The completed Oval Sports Complex was officially opened by the Hon Brendan
Grylls, and the Lawn Bowling Facility had neared completion at the end of the
reporting period. Both facilities have received great interest and will promote
recreation opportunities for the local community. Other continued successful events
have included the Leonora Golden Gift, Australasian Safari Tour, which have
provided for increased tourism, and economic opportunities for the local community.

I am pleased to note that once again the Shire of Leonora has received a ‘clean’ (no
points of statutory non compliance) audit report from its independent auditor. The
auditor’s report within this annual report has been prepared by a new firm, following
the retirement of Council’s previous auditor.

On behalf of the Council and staff, I would like to thank the community for its
participation in various events and activities, and we can look forward to the coming
year of projects and events that will see continued improvement.

Cr Jeff Carter
President
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Significant capital works continued through 2010/11, including the Lawn Bowling
Facility, Underground Power to Industrial Lots etc. The Bowling Facility was very
near completion at the end of the reporting period with only some capital expenditure
carried forward into 2011/12 to complete works to the shade structure. The
completion of subdivision and development of industrial lots will see an auction held
early in 2011/12. This will assist and promote business opportunities in the
community, as well as economic development.

The Shire has continued to embrace various structural reform initiatives, such as its
continued participation and membership in the Goldfields Esperance Voluntary
Regional Organisation of Councils (GVROC), as well as the Goldfields Esperance
Regional Collaborative Group (GERCG). In addition, the new Integrated Strategic
Planning Framework released by the Department of Local Government has seen much
work undertaken by staff to begin implementation of this framework. Although this
will require a great deal of work and time by staff, council, and the community, the
proactive approach to these types of initiatives in recent years will greatly assist the
Shire of Leonora to address and comply with the associated requirements of the
framework.

Dedication of the membership ensures the Shire of Leonora operates as one complete
team, being able to achieve anything. Council’s support has remained steadfast and
progressive throughout the year and is demonstrated by meeting attendances as
highlighted below.

COUNCILLOR MEETING ATTENDED % ATTENDANCE
CONVENED

J F Carter 11 10 91%
P J Craig 11 10 91%
M W V Taylor 11 11 100%
G W Baker 11 11 100%
S J Heather 11 11 100%
N G Johnson 11 4 36%
R A Norrie 11 10 91%
L R Petersen 11 10 91%
J C Kennedy 11 11 100%

Once again, the Shire has finished in a strong financial position, and as with any good
team it’s the dedication and commitment of its members that makes a winning
combination, and I would like to thank all the staff and Councillors for their
perseverance and loyalty over the year in review, and I look forward to the challenges
and rewards that 2011/12 will present to us.

Jim Epis
Chief Executive Officer
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

COUNCILLOR DETAILS
POSITION WARD RETIREM | CONTACT NUMBER
ENT YEAR

PRESIDENT WK

Mr J F CARTER HM 08 9037 6159

Clover Downs Station NORTH 2013 FAX 089037 6159

(PO Box 85) MOB 0417981 016

LEONORA WA 6438 EMAIL jeff@cloverdowns.com.au

DEPUTY PRESIDENT WK 08 90379191

Mr P CRAIG HM 08 9037 9054

9B North Road NORTH 2011 FAX 08 90379192

(PO Box 118) MOB 0418 950 572

LEINSTER WA 6437 EMAIL peter.craig@bagden.com.au
WK

MrM W V Taylor HM

10 Forrest Street SOUTH 2011 FAX 08 6314 4712

(PO Box 226) MOB 0417 976 169

LEONORA WA 6438 EMAIL matt@pmecc.com.au
WK

Mr N G JOHNSON HM 08 9037 6131

Lot 146 Gwalia Street SOUTH 2011 FAX 08 9037 6264

(PO Box 2) MOB 0418 958 418

LEONORA WA 6438 EMAIL ngpjohno@bigpond.com
WK

Ms L R PETERSEN HM 08 9037 6400

Lot 1114 Gwalia Street SOUTH 2013 FAX 08 9037 6404

(PO Box 69) MOB 0419 177 232

LEONORA WA 6438 EMAIL Butsonsbs@westnet.com.au
WK

Mr S J HEATHER HM 08 9037 6153

Lot 8 Gwalia Street NORTH 2013 FAX 08 9037 6153

(PO Box 223) MOB 0408 996 373

LEONORA WA 6438 EMAIL jjheather@bigpond.com
WK 08 9037 6777

Mr R A NORRIE HM 08 9037 7389

Lot 260 Queen Victoria SOUTH 2011 FAX 08 9037 6788

(PO Box 397) MOB 0409 377 386

LEONORA WA 6438 EMAIL rosscpa@bigpond.net.au
WK

Mr J C KENNEDY HM 08 9037 0737

5 Wildara Way NORTH 2011 FAX 08 9037 0737

(PO Box 246) MOB 0439 680 404

LEINSTER WA 6437 EMAIL mariejoe@bigpond.com
WK 08 9037 6090

Mr GW BAKER HM 08 9037 6090

“Waarnba” SOUTH 2013 FAX 08 9037 6090

LOC 51 Laverton Road MOB

(PO Box 90) EMAIL sixmile6@bigpond.com

LEONORA WA 6438
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Anderson Munro & Wyllie

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Unit 8 / 7 Hector Street, Osborne Park WA 6017
PO Box 1357, Osborne Park WA 6916

Phone: (08) 9445 9955 Fax: (08) 9445 9966
ABN 59 125 425 274

Website: www.amwaudit.com.au

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional
Standards Legislation

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
TO THE ELECTORS OF THE SHIRE OF LEONORA

Scope

We have audited the financial report of Shire of Leonora for the year ended 30 June 2011. The
financial report comprises the Statement by Chief Executive Officer, Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Change in Equity, Cash
Flow Statement, Rate Setting Statement and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

The Council is responsible for the preparation of a financial report which provides a true and fair
view of the financial performance and position of the council in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1995, and Regulations. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud
and error and for accounting policies and estimates inherent to the financial report.

Audit Approach

We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on it to
the electors of the Shire of Leonora. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of
material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of
professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal control and the
availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore an audit cannot guarantee
that all misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1995, and Regulations, including
compliance with Accounting Standards in Australia, and other mandatory financial reporting
requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Council's
financial position, and of their performance which is represented by the results of operations and
cash flows.

We formed our opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:
- examining on a test basis, information to provide evidence, supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report.
- assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used, and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

Whilst we considered the effectiveness of managements internal controls over financial reporting
when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to
provide assurance on internal controls.



Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

We performed procedures to assess whether the substance of business transactions were
accurately reflected in the financial report. These and our other procedures did not include
consideration or judgement of the appropriateness or reasonableness of the business plans or
strategies adopted by the executive and management of the Shire of Leonora.

Independence

Anderson Munro & Wyllie are independent of the Shire of Leonora, and have met the
independence requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncements and the Local
Government Act 1995.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.
Audit Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements of the Shire of Leonora are properly drawn up:

a) So as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Shire as at 30 June 2011
and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended,

b) In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995; and

¢) In Accordance with Applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

Statutory Compliance

a) We did not during the course of the audit, become aware of any instance where the
Council did not comply with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995 and the
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996.

b) There were no material or significant adverse trends in financial position or financial
management practices revealed during the course of our audit.

c) We have obtained all necessary information and explanations in relation to our audit.

d) Our audit procedures were all satisfactorily completed.

Dated the 12" day of October 2011 in Perth, Western Australia

AMW (AUDIT) PTY LTD

A’\(}U&‘u\ !U\U«\m & L\)-)"Ai’-ﬁ.\k L;w

ANDERSON MUNRO & WYLLIE CHRISTOPHER McLAUGHLIN
Chartered Accountants Registered Company Auditor
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Anderson Munro & Wyllie

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Unit 8 | 7 Hector Street, Osborne Park WA 6017
PO Box 1357, Osborne Park WA 6916

Phone: (08) 9445 9955 Fax: (08) 9445 9966
ABN 59 125 425 274
Website: www.amwaudit.com.au

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional
Standards Legislation

31 October 2011

Mr. Jim Epis

Chief Executive Officer
Shire of Leonora

PO Box 56

Leonora WA 6438

Dear Jim

MANAGEMENT LETTER
We have now completed our audit of Shire of Leonora for the year ended 30 June 2011.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our procedures
included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures In
the financial report and the evaluation of significant accounting estimates. While our procedures are
designed to identify any material weaknesses and detect misstatements from fraud and error, there
IS an unavoidable risk that even some material misstatements may remain undiscovered. This
unavoidable risk i1s due to the test nature and other inherent limitations of an audit, together with the
inherent limitations of any accounting and internal control system.

During this audit, we noted the following matter which we believe need to be brought to your
attention.

Payroll Testing

Our testing of payroll identified numerous issues that need to be addressed as detailed below:

1. There are no checks made of the correctness of bank details entered onto the system for
new employees (or new suppliers) prior to paying them. During the year an amount paid to a
new employee “bounced-back” as their bank details were incorrect. This may have been
due to the employee giving incorrect details, or these being entered incorrectly onto the
payroll system. We recommend that prior to paying new employees a second person review
the details entered onto the system to ensure they are correct per the new empiloyee. In
addition we recommend this checking process also occur for new suppliers.

2. The "non-outside” employees timesheets are not signed as being reviewed for correctness.
The CEO stated that he had been reviewing these sporadically, and a new system was being
implemented to ensure they are reviewed. We recommend you ensure this system iIs
Implemented as soon as possible, and that all employees are having their timesheets
reviewed for correctness.

3. For one employee selected for testing, no current documentation exists to formally document
their current pay rate. (This should be signed by the CEO and the employee).
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We noted instances where deductions from employee pays were not supported by deduction
authority forms signed by the employee. All deductions from employee pays should be

supported by a signed deduction authority from the employee.

For one employee selected for testing, we could not agree their pay rate to either the award
or an employment contract. Where an employee is hired not directly under the award, the
different terms and conditions need to be documented and signed by the CEO and the
employee. ldeally these employees would each have current employment contracts.

For one employee selected for testing, the pay on 01/12/2010 showed their industry
allowance was being paid at the pre October 2010 rate, and not the post October 2010 rate.
The payroll records need to be updated and any arrears paid to the effected employees.
Measures should be taken to ensure that award changes are updated in the payroll system
as soon as they become applicable.

We noted that some employees were paid leave loading of 17.5% on the annual leave that
they took during the year, however leave loading is not addressed in their employment
contracts. We acknowledge that where the employment contract does not state if the
employee is entitled to leave loading on annual leave you are paying it, as this is the advice
you have received. We recommend that next time the employees’ contracts are updated
they specifically discuss the issue of leave loading on annual leave, and any future
employees have this matter dealt with in their initial contract.

We noted that no formal procedure exists for the approval of the CEO’s annual leave. All

leave taken by the CEO should be approved by Council by way of the signing of a leave
application form by both parties. Short periods of leave could be authorised retrospectively

by Council, all longer periods should be approved in advance.

Plant Hours

During our testing of timesheet costings we noted the following issues:

1.

11 August 2010. Per timesheet used plant # P011 for 1 hour. Per the timesheets costings
worksheet the plant # stated is P2087.

09 February 2011. Per timesheet used plant # P2225 for 3 hours. Per the timesheets
costings worksheet the plant # stated 1s P2253.

09 February 2011. Per timesheet used plant # P289 for 52 hours. Per the timesheets
costings worksheet the plant # stated is P2221.

If the plant number on the timesheets is incorrect then it should be changed on the timesheet to
show this has been reviewed and corrected, not just entered onto the timesheets costings
worksheet.

We recommend that in future more care is taken to enter the plant numbers to the timesheets
costings worksheets.
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Meeting Minutes

We noted during our audit that some of the minutes for the Council meetings during the year did not
have page numbers, and some did not appear to be filed in their correct order. This made it difficult
read and review the minutes.

In future, we recommend that all Council meeting minutes contain page numbers and care be taken
to ensure that the pages are correctly filed in numerical order.

Employee Files

We noted during our interim audit in June 2011 that the employee files were not standardised and
there was no index to show what or where different items were filed. In addition there was no
checklist to show which documents should be filed. We noted at the time that this could lead to the
misfiling of documents, not completing the appropriate documentation and additional time spent
looking for information.

We recommended that all employee files be standardised and include an index of the items filed
(such as employment contract, annual leave forms, tax declarations, correspondence,
superannuation forms, CV/resume, etc). These files would also have a checklist to show what has
been filed. This will ensure all information required to be on the employee files is present and easy

to locate.

During our final audit in August 2011 we noted that the recommendations made above were in the
process of being implemented.

Compliance Audit Return

During our review of the 2010 Compliance Audit Return we noted the following instances of non-
compliance with the Local Government Act (Act);

e $5S.46(2), All delegations made under Div4 of Part 5 of the Act were not reviewed by
the delegator at least once during the 09/10 financial year.

e 55.38, Employee performance reviews were carried out, however not all were
completed within the 12 month time limit.

e S3.16(1), Reviews of the local laws hadn't been carried out within the required period
of eight years.

We acknowledge that all of these items have currently been resolved, or are in the process of being
resolved.

We recommend that in future the necessary measures be taken to ensure compliance with the Act

regarding the issues noted above. These measures should ensure that the Council remains
compliant with the Act and its Regulations.
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Minor Issues Noted

In addition to the issues noted above there were also several minor issues noted as detailed below:

Plant and Equipment Stocktake

During our audit we noted that no plant and equipment stocktake had been performed for quite
some time. As the plant and equipment for the Shire is a significant asset we recommend they
be counted and verified back to the assets listing on a regular basis.

We recommend that a plant and equipment stocktake be performed prior to 30 June 2012.

Long Service Leave
We noted during our audit that the long service leave (“LSL") provision in the prior year

financials (30 June 2010) did not appear to correctly split the current and non-current portions
as several employees who were due LSL were not listed as being current.

The provision in the financials for the year ended 30 June 2011 correctly takes into account all
employees that are due for their LSL.

We take this opportunity to thank Tanya and your staff for the assistance provided to us during the
course of the audit.

Please do not hesitate to call should you like to discuss any aspect of the audit.

Yours Sincerely
ANDERSON MUNRO & WYLIE

CHRIS McLAUGHLIN
Director
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SHIRE OF LEOCNORA
FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT) REGULATIONS 1996

STATEMENT BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The attached financial report of the Shire of Leonora being the annuai financial report and
other information for the financial year ended 30th June 2011 are in my opinion properly drawn
up to present fairly the financial position of the Shire of Leonora at 30th June 2011 and the
results of the operations for the financial year then ended in accordance with the Australian
Accounting Standards and comply with the provisions of the Local Government Act 1995 and
the regulations under that Act.

Signed on the 6 Les day of OG’QJ@V, 2011

AL

ef Executive Officer

Page 2 -53-



SHIRE OF LEONORA

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BY NATURE OR TYPE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

NOTE 2011 2011 2010
$ Budget $
$
REVENUE
Rates 22 4,591,575 4,518,121 4,062,688
Operating Grants, Subsidies and
Contributions 28 2,144,095 1,671,322 2,381,096
Fees and Charges 27 1,415,723 669,155 838,662
Interest Eamings 2(a) 105,283 35,078 68,533
Other Revenue 374,887 358,560 50,159
8,631,563 7,252,236 7,401,138
EXPENSES
Employee Costs (2,407,834) (3,571,300) (2,132,400)
Materials and Contracts {2,882,352) (2,004,318) (2,573,098)
Utility Charges (321,665) (111,200) (280,886)
Depreciation on Non-Current Assets 2(a) (992,365) (1,419,000) (1,024,635}
Insurance Expenses (214,783) {216,450) (188,427)
Other Expenditure {179,681) {445,587) (266,077)
~{6,998,680) (7,767,855) (6,465,523)
1,632,883 {515,619) 935,615
Non-Operating Grants, Subsidies and
Contributions 28 763,238 1,213,001 317,085
Profit on Asset Disposals 20 0 207,944 44,086
Loss on Asset Disposal 20 {122,943) (55,363) (61,577)
NET RESULT 2,273,178 849,963 1,235,209
Other Comprehensive Income
Changes on revaluation of non-cumrent assets (12,949) 0 (1,433,142)
Total Other Comprehensive Income {12,949) 0 (1,433,142)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2,260,229 849,963 (197,933}

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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President:
SHIRE OF LEONORA
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011
NOTE 2011 2011 2010
$ Budget $
$

REVENUE
Governance 2,754 41,660 45,480
General Purpose Funding 5,891,063 5,341,572 5,548,272
Law, Order, Public Safety 17,069 43,350 47,798
Health 14,905 16,720 15,711
Education and Welfare 113,070 270,790 180,645
Housing 42,481 41,520 41,591
Community Amenities 80,948 617,259 71,395
Recreation and Culture 683,604 719,516 166,144
Transport 1,249,461 1,058,944 921,983
Economic Services 428,531 380,150 376,214
Other Property and Services 870,915 141,700 347,076

2(a) 9,394,801 8,673,181 7,762,309
EXPENSES EXCLUDING FINANCE COSTS
Governance {210,948) (285,998) {195,506)
General Purpose Funding (383,053) (368,831) (353,029)
Law, Order, Public Safety (140,382) (174,211) (152,015)
Health {444,190) (438,712) (435,973)
Education and Welfare {223,136) (282,000) {221,009)
Community Amenities (224,986) {291,638) (223,518)
Recreation & Culture (920,780) (1.157,018) (992,584)
Transport {2,682,932) (3,524,856) (2,878,728)
Economic Services (1,141,713) (1,229,954} (844,036)
Other Property and Services (749,503) {70,000) (230,701)

2{(a) (7,121,623) (7,823,218) (6,527,099)
NET RESULT 2,273,178 849,963 1,235,210
Other Comprehensive Income
Changes on revaluation of non-current assets (12,949) 0 (1,433,142)
Total Other Comprehensive Income {12,949) 0 (1,433,142)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2,260,229 849,963 (197,932)
This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHIRE OF LEONORA

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30TH JUNE 2011

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and Other Receivables
Inventories

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Property, Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and Other Payables
Provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Retained Surplus

Reserves - Cash Backed
Reserves - Asset Revaluation
TOTAL EQUITY

NOTE

o AW

~N ®

17

10

11
12

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2011 2010

$ $
649,328 1,758,857
305,160 368,412
44,700 40,645
999,188 2,167,914
1,107,851 186,803
11,653,622 9,292,578
40,194,425 39,827,529
52,855,898 49,306,910
53,855,086 51,474,824
87,880 47,417
336,744 170,537
424,624 217,954
11,599 98,236
11,599 98,236
436,223 316,190
53,418,863 51,158,634
34,714,822 31,496,649
308,432 1,253,427
18,395,609 18,408,558
53,418,863 51,158,634
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SHIRE OF LEONORA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

NOTE
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts
Rates
Operating Grants, Subsidies and
Contributions

Fees and Charges
Interest Earnings

Goods and Services Tax
Other Revenue

Payments

Employee Costs
Materials and Contracts
Utility Charges

Insurance Expenses
Goods and Services Tax
Other Expenditure

Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Operating Activities 13(b)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments for Development of
Land Held for Resale
Payments for Purchase of
Property, Plant & Equipment
Payments for Construction of
Infrastructure
Revaluation of Assets
Non-Operating Grants,
Subsidies and Contributions
used for the Development of Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Plant & Equipment
Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held

Cash at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents

at the End of the Year 13(a)

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2011 2011 2010
$ Budget $
$
4,650,882 4,518,121 4,066,448
2,050,472 1,671,322 2,381,096
1,415,723 1,137,191 767,415
105,283 35,078 68,533
97,568 110,000 519,425
374,887 358,560 50,158
8,694,815 7,830,272 7,853,075
(2,363,185) (3,571,300) (2,182,583)
(2,811,023) (2,011,020) (2,583,671)
(321,665) (111,200) {280,886)
(214,783) (216,450) (188,427)
0 (210,000) (557,693)
(179,681) {445,587) (266,075)
{5,890,337) (6,565,557) (6,059,335)
2,804,478 1,264,715 1,793,740
(921,048) 0 (122,545)
(3,122,846) {4,300,581) {2,583,107)
{913,715) (383,243) (244,029)
0 0 0
763,238 1,213,001 317,085
280,364 702,581 373,817
(3,914,007) (2,768,242) (2,258,779)
(1,109,529) (1,503,527) (465,039)
1,758,857 1,758,954 2,223,895
649,328 255,427 1,758,856
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:
SHIRE OF LEONORA
RATE SETTING STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011
2011 2011
NOTE $ Budget
$
REVENUE
Governance 2,754 41,660
General Purpose Funding 1,299,488 823,451
Law, Order, Public Safety 17,069 43,350
Health 14,905 16,720
Education and Welfare 113,070 270,790
Housing 42,481 41,520
Community Amenities 80,948 617,259
Recreation and Culture 683,604 719,516
Transport 1,249,461 1,058,944
Economic Services 428,531 380,150
Other Property and Services 870,915 141,700
4,803,226 4,155,060
EXPENSES
Governance {210,948) (285,998)
General Purpose Funding (383,053) (368,831)
Law, Order, Public Safety (140,382) {174,211)
Health (444,190) {438,712)
Education and Welfare {223,136) {(282,000)
Community Amenities (224,986) {291,638)
Recreation & Culture (920,780) (1,157,018)
Transport (2,682,932) (3,524,856)
Economic Services {1,141,713) (1,229,954)
Other Property and Services (749,503) (70,000)
(7,121,623) (7,823,218)
Net Operating Result Excluding Rates {2,318,397) (3,668,158)
Adjustments for Cash Budget Requirements:
Non-Cash Expenditure and Revenue
{Profit)/Loss on Asset Disposals 20 122,943 (152,581)
Movement in Accrued Salaries and Wages 6,889 0
Movement in Employee Benefit Provisions {7,145) 0
Depreciation on Assets 2(a) 992,365 1,419,000
Capital Expenditure and Revenue
Purchase Land Held for Resale 3 (921,048) 0
Purchase Land and Buildings 6 (2,425,165) (3,384,173)
Purchase Infrastructure Assets - Roads 7 {809,893) (323,243)
Purchase Infrastructure Assets - Other 7 0 (60,000)
Purchase Plant and Equipment 6 (684,785) (896,408)
Purchase Furniture and Equipment 6 {12,8986) {20,000)
Proceeds from Disposal of Assets 20 280,364 702,581
Transfers to Reserves (Restricted Assets) 11 (58,328) (2,000}
Transfers from Reserves (Restricted Assets) " 1,003,323 1,000,000
ADD Estimated Surplus/{Deficit) July 1 B/Fwd 867,070 866,861
LESS Estimated Surplus/(Deficit) June 30 G/Fwd 523,050 0
Amount Required to be Raised from Rates 22 {(4,487,753) {(4,518,121)
This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
-59-
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(a)

(b}

(c)

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this financial
report are:

Basis of Preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial statement which has been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards (as they apply to local governments and not-for-profit entities), Australian
Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the
local Government Act 1995 and accompanying regulations.

The report has also been prepared on the accrual basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where
applicable, by the measurement at fair value of the selected non-current assets, financial assets
and liabilities.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances; the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The Local Government Reporting Entity
All Funds through which the Council controls resources to carry on its functions have been
included in the financial statements forming part of this financial report.

fn the process of reporting on the local government as a single unit, all transactions and balances
between those funds (for example, loans and transfers between Funds) have been eliminated.

All monies held in the Trust Fund are excluded from the financial statements, but a separate
statement of those monies appears at Note 19 to these financial statements.

Goods and Services Tax

In accordance with recommended practice, revenues, expenses and assets capitalised are stated net
of any GST recoverable. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are stated
inclusive of applicable GST.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at bank, deposits held at call with banks,
other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown as short term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of
financial position.

(e) Trade and Other Receivables

Collectability of trade and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are
known to be uncollectible are written off when identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is
raised when there is objective evidence that they will not be collectible.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
{f) Inventories

General
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Land Held for Resale

Land purchased for development and/or resale is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes the cost of acquisition, development, borrowing costs and holding costs
until Finance costs and holding charges incurred after development is completed are expensed.

Revenue arising from the sale of property is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
as at the time of signing an unconditional contract of sale.

Land held for resale is classified as current except where it is held as non-current based on Council's intention
to release for sale.

{g) Fixed Assets
Each class of fixed assets is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any

accumulated depreciation or impairment losses.

Initial Recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given
as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition. For assets acquired at no cost or for
nominal consideration, cost is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition. The cost of
non-current assets constructed by the Council includes the cost of all materials used in
construction, direct labour on the project and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overhead.

Revaluation

Certain asset classes may be revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially
different from fair value. For infrastructure and other asset classes where no active market exists, fair
value is determined to be the current replacement cost of an asset less, where applicable, accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future
economic benefits of the asset.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of assets are credited to a revaluation
surplus in equity. Decreases that offset previous increases in the same asset are charged
against fair value reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Those assets carried at a revalued amount, being their fair value at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, are to be revalued with
sufficient reguiarity to ensure the carrying amount does not differ materially from that determined using
fair value at reporting date.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Fixed Assets (Continued)

Land under Roads
In Western Australia, all land under roads is Crown Land, the responsibility for managing which, is vested in the
local government,

Effective as at 1 July 2008, Council elected not to recognise any value for land under roads acquired on or before
30 June 2008. This accords with the treatment available in Australian Accounting Standard AASB1051 - Land
Under Roads and the fact Local Government (Financial Management) Regulation 16(a)(i) prohibits local
governments from recognising such land as an asset.

In respect of land under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008, as detailed above, Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulation 16(a)(i} prohibits iocal governments from recognising such land as an asset.

Whilst such treatment is inconsistent with the requirements of AASB 1051, Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulation 4(2) provides, in the event of such an inconsistency, the Local Government {Financial
Management) Regulations prevail.

Consequently, any land under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008 is not included as an asset of the Council.

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are separately and systematically depreciated
over their useful lives in a manner which reflects the consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in those assets.

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets,
from the time the asset is completed and held ready for use.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis, using rates which are reviewed each reporting
period. Major depreciation periods are:

Buildings 30 to 50 years
Furniture and Equipment 210 15 years
Plant and Equipment 510 15 years
Infrastructure 10 to 40 years

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Fixed Assets (Continued)

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets (Continued)
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposais are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount,
These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income. When revaiued
assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transferred
to retained earnings.

Capitalisation Threshold
The Shire has no capitalisation threshold.

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabllities are recognised when the Council becomes a party to the
contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that
the Council commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset {ie trade date accounting is
adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the
instrument is classified 'at fair value through profit or loss’, in which case transaction costs are
expensed to profit or loss immediately.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement
Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method or at cost.

Fair value represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a iiability settled,

between knowledgeable, willing parties. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are
used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
{h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and Subsequent Measurement (Continued)
Amortised cost is calculated as:

{a) the amount in which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition;
(b) less principal repayments;

fc) plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount

{b} less any reduction for impairment.

The effective interest rate method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life {or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financiai
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to
expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a
consequential recognition of an income or expense in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.

(i} Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for those which are not expected to
mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting period (classified as non-current assets).

{iii} Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Council’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-current assets, except for those which are
expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting period (classified as current
assets).

If the Council were to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the
whole category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
{h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and Subsequent Measurement (Continued)

{(iv} Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets, are non-derivative financial assets that are either not suitable to
be classified into other categories of financial assets due to their nature, or they are designated as
such by management. They comprise investments in the equity of other entities where there is
neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable.

Available-for-sale financial assets are included in non-current assets, except for those which are
expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting period (classified as current
assets).

(v) Financial liabifities
Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Council assesses whether there is objective evidence that a
financial instrument has been impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a
prolonged decline in the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether impairment has
arisen. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

{i} Estimation of Fair Value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and
measurement or for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Council uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based
on market conditions existing at each reporting date. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-term debt
instruments held. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Council for similar financial instruments.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment
In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards the Council's assets, other than inventories,
are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication they may be impaired.

Where such an indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset is made
in accordance with AASB 136 'Impairment of Assets' and appropriate adjustments made.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

For non-cash generating assets such as roads, drains, public buildings and the like, value in use is
represented by the depreciated replacement cost of the asset.

Trade and Other Payahles

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Council
prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Council becomes
obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Employee Benefits
The provisions for employee benefits relates to amounts expected to be paid for long service
leave, annual leave, wages and salaries and are calculated as follows:

(i) Wages, Salaries, Annual Leave and Long Service Leave (Short-term Benefits)

The provision for employees’ benefits to wages, salaries, annual leave and long service leave
expected to be settled within 12 months represents the amount the Council has a present
obligation to pay resulting from employees services provided to reporting date. The provision has
been calculated at nominal amounts based on remuneration rates the Council expects to pay
and includes related on-costs.

(i} Long Service Leave {Long-term Benefits)

(m)

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields
at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. Where the Council does not have the
unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 months, the liability is recognised as a current
liability.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred except where they are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Where this is
the case, they are capitalised as part of the cost of the particular asset.

Page 15 -66-



Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:

a) the Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;

b} for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will resuit to settle the
obligation; and

c) that outflow can be reliably measured.

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settie the obligation
at the end of the reporting period.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

(o) Leases
Leases of fixed assets, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership
of the asset, but not legal ownership, are transferred to the Council, are classified as finance
leases.

Finance leases are capitalised recording an asset and a liability at the iower amounts equal to the

fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any
guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability
and the lease interest expense for the period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives
or the lease term.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the
lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight line
basis over the life of the lease term.

(p) Joint Venture
The Council's interest in a joint venture has been recognised in the financial statements by
including its share of any assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the joint venture within
the appropriate line items of the financial statement. Information about the joint venture is set
out in Note 16.

{q9) Rates, Grants, Donations and Other Contributions
Rates, grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the local
government obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions. Control over assets
acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating period or, where earlier, upon
receipt of the rates.

Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the
condition that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those
conditions were undischarged as at the reporting date, the nature of and amounts pertaining to
those undischarged conditions are disclosed in Note 2(c). That note also discloses the amount
of contributions recognised as revenues in a previous reporting period which were obtained in
respect of the local government's operation for the current reporting period.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{r) Superannuation
The Council contributes to a number of superannuation funds on behalf of employees.

(s) Current and Non-Current Classification
In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given
fo the time when each asset or liability is expscted to be settled. The asset or liability is classified as
current if it is expected to be settled within the next 12 months, being the Council's operational cycle.
In the case of liabilities where the Council does not have the unconditional right to defer settlement
beyond 12 months, such as vested long service leave, the liability is classified as current even if not
expected to be settled within the next 12 months. Inventories held for trading are classified as
current even if not expected to be realised in the next 12 months except for land held for resale
where it is held as non-current based on Council’s intentions to release for sale.

(t} Rounding Off Figures
All figures shown in this annual financial report, other than a rate in the dollar, are rounded to the
nearest dollar.

(u) Comparative Figures
Where required, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation
for the current financial year.

{v) Budget Comparative Figures

Unless otherwise stated, the budget comparative figures shown in this annual financial report relate to
the original budget estimate for the relevant item of disclosure.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:
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SHIRE OF LEONORA

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES 2011 2010
$ $
{a) Net Result
The Net Result includes:
(i} Charging as a Revenue:
Significant Revenue
General Purpose Funding 282,776 266,250
This significant expense in both years relates to the early
payment of a WA Grants Commission Quarterly instalment.
2010
WA Grants Commission Quarterly
Auditors Remuneration
- Audit 7,287 5,050
- Other Services 0 1,000
Depreciation
Land & Buildings 125,885 140,660
Furniture and Equipment 22,969 26,065
Plant and Equipment 309,641 297,080
Roads 399,350 429,630
Roads - Other 57,606 57,606
Other Infrastructure 76,914 73,584
992,365 1,024,635
(i) Crediting as Revenue:; 2011 2011 2010
$ Budget $
$
Interest Earnings
Investments
- Reserve Funds 55,007 10,078 49,404
- Other Funds 50,276 25,000 19,129
105,283 35,078 68,533
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)
{b) Statement of Objective

The Shire of Leonora is dedicated to providing high quality services to the community through
the various service orientated programs which it has established.

GOVERNANCE

Includes costs and revenues associated with the President and Councillors in the exercise
of their obligations as a governing body. ltems of expenditure include conference, travel,
meeting attendance fees, presidential allowance, receptions, donations, subscriptions and
phone rentals. Costs of advertising and conducting elections are also included. Revenues
include election nomination fees and reimbursements by members for private expenses.

An administration cost is also allocated which enables staff to process Council Meeting
procedures, implement all government decisions and conduct Council meetings. Cost of
conducting audit of Council books of accounts and procedures is also include under this heading.

GENERAL PURPOSE FUNDING

1 Rates

(a) GRYV (gross rental value) refers to property rates for Leonora, Gwalia, Leinster and Aghew
town sites and operational mines and associated infrastructure.

(b} UV (unimproved value) refers to mining properties and tenements (other than mines and
other associated infrastructure) and includes prospecting licences, exploration licences and
mining leases. It also refers to broad acre rural pastoral properties.

(c) Additional rates and rates written back refer mainly to mining rates where tenements are granted
or surrendered following the adoption of the budget.

(d) Administration charge refers to the charge levied on ratepayers electing to make payment of
rates on the offered instalment plan and is based on the actual cost involved in administering
this process

(e) Administration costs allocated are the costs of maintaining records, fevying and collecting
all rates.

2 Grants

(a) Grants Commission - a general purpose grant allocated annually by the Federal Government
to all local governments. The amount is determined by various formulae devised by the Grants
Commission, with a significant component being based on population.

(b) Roads Grant - An untied road grant allocated by the Federal Government and again
distributed by the Grants Commission utilising a pre-determined formula.

(c) Administration costs allocated to grants refers to the costs associated in collection of Federal
Government grants including provision and updating of data used in grants commission
formula.

3 Interest from Investments
Includes interest received on surplus funds invested throughout the year from both operating and
reserve accounts.

LAW, ORDER, PUBLIC SAFETY

Costs and revenues associated with animal control within the Shire and also includes fire
insurance, dog control and registration.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

HEALTH

Costs and revenues associated with compliance with the Health Act including inspections and
approvals, food quality control, mosquito control, septic tank inspection/control, food hygiene
inspection/control, contribution to doctors expenses, Royal Flying Doctor donation and
notification of disease.

EDUCATION AND WELFARE
Provision of support for education and aged and disabled facilities within the district for the
betterment of the residents.

HOUSING

Costs of maintaining Council owned accommodation units and collection of rentals paid by
staff for use of those buildings. Costs that can be accurately attributed to other

programs are allocated. Revenue associated with a State Government owned house

by way of loan repayments to Council are also included.

Accommodation units include 3 houses, 2 dupiexes and a single persons quarters.
COMMUNITY AMENITIES

Costs of collection and disposal of domestic and commercial refuse for town site of Leonora
and Gwalia and maintenance of the landfill refuse site. Revenue collection by way of an
annual fee for this service which is included on rate assessment notices.

Costs associated with review and administration of Council's Town Planning Scheme.
Provision of Christmas decorations in Leonora Town site.

Operation of the Leonora Cemetery.

RECREATION AND CULTURE

Provision and maintenance of Council owned parks, gardens and grassed oval/recreation
ground at Leonora and a contribution to similar facilities within Leinster townsite.

Costs of operation and maintenance of a purpose built recreation centre which includes
indoor basketball court, two squash courts, kitchen, gymnasium and associated facilities

and revenues collected from the public for use of these facilities.

Costs of maintenance of Council owned and provided television and radio re-transmission
service which includes GWN, WIN and SBS television and WAFM and ABC fine music radio.

Costs and revenues associated with the operation and maintenance of library facilities at
Leonora in conjunction with the Library Board of Western Australia.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

TRANSPORT

Maintenance and improvements of 1,300 kilometres of Council controilled unsealed roads,

town site footpaths and streets, drainage control, street cleaning and provision and maintenance
of street trees. Costs of providing electricity for steel lights in the Leonora/Gwalia town sites

and maintenance of Council's works depot and associated infrastructure.

Operation, maintenance and management of Leonora Aerodrome including runways,
runway lighting, tarmac and terminal building and gardens. Purchase of aviation fuel for
resale to aircraft operators.

Revenues by way of landing fees and Head Tax charges charged to all aircraft with the
exception of the Royal Flying Doctors Service, leasefrenting of building to all users of
facilities and charges for fuel supplied to aircraft.

ECONOMIC SERVICES
Costs associated with tourism promotion throughout the Shire including employment of a
Curator/Promotion Officer at the Gwalia Museum and historic precinct.

Contribution to employment of a Goldfields/Esperance Development Officer operating from
Shire Offices - Leonora.

Contribution to costs of North Eastern Goldfieids Land care Organisation.

Costs and revenues associated with building control under building regulations, including
inspections and issuing building permits.

OTHER PROPERTY & SERVICES
Costs and revenues for private hire of Council machinery and operators for completion of
private works for ratepayers and others.

Costing allocation pools including administration, overheads, plant operation costs and

salaries and wages which are all individually detailed and then allocated throughout all
previously mentioned operating activities, works and services.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

2011 2010
$ $
3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Unrestricted 255,050 350,546
Restricted 394,278 1,408,311
649,328 1,758,857
The following restrictions have been imposed by
regulations or other extemnally imposed requirements:
Long Service Leave Reserve 129,055 123,196
Fire Disaster Reserve 12,691 12,115
Plant Purchase Reserve 992 992
Annual Leave Reserve 120,974 115,482
Bowling Green Reserve 44,720 1,001,642
Unspent Grants 85,846 154,884
394,278 1,408,311
4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Current
Rates Outstanding 53,934 59,307
Sundry Debtors 251,226 211,537
GST Receivabie 0 97,568
305,160 368,412
5. INVENTORIES
Current
Fuel and Materials 44,700 40,645
44,700 40,645
Non-Current
Land Held for Resale - Cost
Cost of Acquisition 2,500 2,500
Development Costs 1,105,351 184,303
1,107,851 186,803
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

201 2010
$ $
6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Buildings - Management Valuation 2010 7,015,429 7,015,429
Land and Buildings - Cost 2,425,165 0
Less Accumulated Depreciation {125,885) 0
9,314,709 7,015,429
Furniture and Equipment - Cost 378,964 366,068
Less Accumulated Depreciation {339,165) {316,196)
39,799 49,872
Plant and Equipment - Cost 3,788,636 3,682,000
Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,5689,522) (1,454,723)
2,199,114 2,227,277
11,553,622 9,292,578

Council have adopted a policy of re-valuing with sufficient regularity to ensure the carrying amount
of each building asset is fairly stated at reporting date.

This policy also accords with AASB 116.
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President:
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7.

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

2011 2010
$ $

INFRASTRUCTURE
Roads - management valuation 2011 49,996,550 0
Roads - management valuation 2010 0 49,021,009
Less Accumulated Depreciation _(15,362,451) (14,888,326)
34,634,099 34,132,683
Roads Other - Cost 2,518,195 2,518,195
Less Accumulated Depreciation {560,448) {502,842)
1,957,747 2,015,353
Other - management valuation 2010 3,845,652 3,845,653
Less Accumulated Depreciation {243,073) {166,160)
3,602,579 3,679,493
40,194,425 39,827,529

Council have adopted a policy of re-valuing with sufficient regularity to ensure the carrying amount

of each road asset and other infrastructure is fairly stated at reporting date.

This policy also accords with AASB 116.
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7.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

INFRASTRUCTURE {Continued)

Movements in Carrying Amounts

SHIRE OF LEONORA

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Movement in the carrying amounts of each class of infrastructure between the beginning and the end

of the current financial year.

Balance at the beginning
of the year

Additions
(Disposals)

Revaluation - Increments
- (Decrements)

Impairment - (losses)
- reversals

Depreciation (Expense)

Carrying amount at the
end of year

Roads -
Roads Other Other Total
$ $ $ $
34,132,683 2,015,353 3,679,493 39,827,529
809,893 0 103,822 913,715
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
(12,949) 0 0 (12,949)
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
(399,350} (57,606) (76,914) {533,870)
34,530,277 1,957,747 3,706,401 40,194,425
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

2011 2010
$ $
8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Current
Sundry Creditors 80,954 5,570
PAYG Payable 37 41,847
Accrued Salaries and Wages 6,889 0
87,880 47,417
9. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
The Shire has no long term borrowings for the financial vear.
10. PROVISIONS
Current
Provision for Annual Leave 142,273 115,989
Provision for Long Service Leave 194,471 54,638
336,744 170,537
Non-Current
Provision for Long Service Leave 11,599 08,236
11,599 98,236
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1.

(a)

(b)

(c)

{d)

(e)

)

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

RESERVES - CASH BACKED

Long Service Leave Reserve

Opening Balance

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve

Fire Disaster Reserve

Opening Balance

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve

Combined Sporting Reserve

Opening Balance

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve

Plant Purchase Reserve

Opening Balance

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve

Bowling Green Reserve

Opening Balance

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve

Annual Leave Reserve

Opening Balance

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve

TOTAL CASH BACKED RESERVES

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

All of the reserve accounts are supported by money held in financial institutions and match the
amounts shown as restricted cash of this financial report.

2011 2011 2010
$ Budget $
$

123,196 123,196 119,484
5,859 4] 3,746

0 0 (34)
129,055 123,196 123,196
12,115 12,115 9,755
3,899 2,000 2,363
(3,323) 0 (3)
12,691 14,115 12,115

0 0 825,458

0 0 324,726

0 0 (1,150,184)

0 0 0

992 992 56,387

0 0 89,621

0 0 {145,016)

992 992 992
1,001,642 1,001,642 600,000
43,078 0 401,811
~{1,000,000) {1,000,000) (169)
44,720 1,642 1,001,642
115,482 115,482 112,002
5,492 0 3,512

0 0 (32)
120,974 115,482 115,482
308,432 255,427 1,253,427
-85-

Page 34



1.

12.

(a)

(c)

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

RESERVES - CASH BACKED (continued).

In accordance with council resolutions in relation to each reserve account, the purpose for which
the funds are set aside are as follows:

Long Service Leave Reserve
- This reserve is to offset Council's leave liability to it's employees.
Fire Disaster Reserve
- This reserve will assist in the provision of emergency contingencies in the case of fire disaster.
Combined Sporting Club Reserve
- To set aside money for the building of a combined sporting club facility within the Shire.
Plant Purchase Reserve
- to be used for the purchase of major plant.
Bowling Green Reserve
- to be used for the maintenance of the bowling green.
Annual Leave Reserve
- this reserve is to offset council's annual leave liability to it's employees,
Housing Reserve
- To set aside money for the building of housing within the Shire.

None of the above reserves are expected to be used within a set period as further transfers to the
reserve accounts are expected before funds are utilised.

RESERVES - ASSET REVALUATION 2011 2010

Asset revaluation reserves have arisen on revaluation

of the following classes of non-current assets:

Land and Buildings
Opening balance 0 127,531
Revaluation Increment 0 0
Revaluation Decrement 0 (127,531)
0 0
Roads
Opening Balance 17,165,458 16,441,892
Revaluation Increment 0 723,566
Revaluation Decrement {12,949) 0
17,152,508 17,165,458
Other Infrastructure
Opening Balance 1,243,100 1,233,100
Revaluation Increment 1] 10,000
Revaluation Decrement 0 0
1,243,100 1,243,100
TOTAL ASSET REVALUATION RESERVES 18,395,609 18,408,558
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

13. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{a) Reconciliation of Cash
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash and cash equivalents,

net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the reporting period is reconciled to the
related items in the statement of financial position as follows:

2011 2011 2010
$ Budget $
$
Cash and Cash Equivalents 649,328 255,427 1,758,857
(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided By

Operating Activities to Net Result
Net Result 2,273,178 849,963 1,235,210
Writedown of Assets 0 0 0
Depreciation 992,365 1,419,000 1,024,635
{Profit)/Loss on Sale of Asset 122,943 (152,581) 17,491
{Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 63,252 368,036 (105,755)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (4,055) 40,715 (8,187)
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables 33,574 (47,417) {60,361)
Increasef(Decrease) in Employee Provisions 86,459 0 7.802
Grants/Contributions for

the Development of Assets (763,238) (1,213,001) (317,085)
Net Cash from Qperating Activities 2,804,478 1,264,715 1,793,740

(¢} Undrawn Borrowing Facilities

Credit Standby Arrangements
Bank Overdraft limit 0 0
Bank Overdraft at Balance Date 0 0
Credit Card limit 20,000 10,000
Credit Card Balance at Balance Date 3,720 4,352
Total Amount of Credit Unused 23,720 14,352
Unused Loan Facilities at Balance Date Nil Nil
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14.

15.

{b)

(c)

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:
SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no known contingent liabilities at balance date.
2011 2010

CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS $ $
Operating Lease Commitments
Non-cancellable operating leases
contracted for but not capitalised in
the accounts.
Payable:
- not later than one year 28,337 16,102
- later than one year but not later than five years 46,801 28,991
- later than five years 0 0

75,138 45,093
Capital Expenditure Commitments
Contracted for:
- capital expenditure projects 320,000 2,277,145
Payable:
- not later than one year 320,000 2,277,145

The capital expenditure project outstanding at the end of the current reporting period represents
the completion of the construction of the Bowling Club and associated facilities.
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SHIRE OF LEONORA

President:

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

16. JOINT VENTURE

17.

The Shire together with the Shire of Laverton and Shire of Menzies have a joint venture arrangement

Signed: 15th November, 2011

with regard to the provision of an Environmental Health and Building Surveying Service. There
are no joint assets involved with the arrangement and the Shire of Leonora on charges all of

the Shire of Laverton's and Shire of Menzies' share of the cost.

TOTAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

General Purpose Funding
Law, Order, Public Safety
Health

Education and Welfare
Housing

Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport

Economic Services

Other Property and Services
Unallocated

Page 38

2011 2010

$ $
53,938 362,891
48,323 22,385
314,627 309,752
103,349 103,471
1,381,025 1,368,131
2,073,665 1,182,660
5,855,636 4,720,427
41,408,662 40,994,067
417,231 443,897
1,655,183 1,881,681
339,625 85,462
53,751,264 51,474,824
-89-



Signed: 15th November, 2011

The above ratios are calculated as follows:

Current Ratio

Untied Cash to Unpaid Trade Creditors Ratic

Debt Ratio

Debt Service Ratio

Gross Debt to Revenue Ratio

Gross Debt to

Economically Realisable Assets Ratio

Rate Coverage Ratio

Outstanding Rates Ratio

Page 39

President:
SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011
2011 2010 2009
18. FINANCIAL RATIOS

Current Ratio 3.47 15.85 3.06
Untied Cash to Unpaid Trade Creditors Ratio 315 7.39 1.19
Debt Ratio 0.01 0.01 0.01
Debt Service Ratio 0.00 0.00 0.00
Gross Debt to Revenue Ratio 0.00 0.00 0.00
Gross Debt to

Economically Realisable Assets Ratio 0.00 0.00 0.00
Rate Coverage Ratio 0.49 0.52 0.49
QOutstanding Rates Ratio 0.00 0.01 0.02

current assets minus restricted asseis

current liabilities minus liabilities associated

with restricted assets

untied cash
unpaid trade creditors

total liabilities
total assets

debt service cost

available operating revenue

gross debt

total revenue

__gross debt

econhomically realisable assets

net rate revenue
operating revenue

rates outstandin
rates collectable
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19.

20.

TRUST FUNDS

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The Shire of Leonora hold no funds on behalf of other entities.

DISPOSALS OF ASSETS - 2010/11 FINANCIAL YEAR

The following assets were disposed of during the year.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Net Book Value Sale Price Profit {Loss)
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
$ $ $ $ $ $
Health
Ford FG WR6 Turbo 33,588 34,000 27,273 27,273 (6,315) {(6,727)
Ford Falcon FG WR6 Turbo 33,159 34,000 29,091 29,001 (4,068) {4,909)
Transport 0
Nissan Patrol DX 33,931 35,000 22,727 25,000] (11,204)| (10,000)
Ford Ranger Crew Cab 27,878 29,000 20,000 15,000 (7.878)| (14,000)
Ford PJ Ranger C/Cab 27,916 30,000 20,000 25,000 {7,916) (5,000)
Community Amenities
l1zuzu Garbage Truck 0 50,000 0 50,000 ¢ 0
Industrial Land 0| 184,000 0| 318,944 0| 134,944
Other Property & Services
Ford Falcon 2002 41,470 43,000 35,000 35,000 (6,470) (8,000)
Ford FG WR6 Turbo 33,332 34,000 27,273 27,273 (6,059) (6,727)
2006 Cat Grader 172,033 77,000 99,0001 150,000| (73,033) 73,000
403,307] 550,000{ 280,364] 702,581] (122,943)] 152,581
Profit 0 207,944
{Loss) {122,943)  (55,363)
(122,943) 152,581
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:
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SHIRE OF LEONORA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

23. SPECIFIED AREA RATE - 2010/11 FINANCIAL YEAR

24,

25.

26.

Council did not impose a specified area rate.

SERVICE CHARGES - 2010/11 FINANCIAL YEAR

Council did not levy a service charge

DISCOUNTS, INCENTIVES, CONCESSIONS, & WRITE-OFFS

= 2010/11 FINANCIAL YEAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

Type Disc % Total Budget
Cost/ Cost/
Value Value
$ $
Landing Fees Discount | 100.00% 3,000 3,000
Housing Rental Discount | 100.00% 5,200 5,200
8,200 8,200
Rate Assessment Write-Off 3,098 100,000

Landing Fees

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

The Royal Flying Doctor Service (RFDS) has been granted a continuous waiver on landing fees at
the airport. This waiver is in recognition of the valuable community service provided by the RFDS to

the district.

Housing Rental

The Shire of Leonora provides housing to the local Doctor who resides in Leonora and all rent is
waivered as per an agreement between the Doctor and Council.

Mining Tenements

Numerous mining tenements are raised by Council throughout the financial year. On occasions rates
are raised for the whole year, but the tenement is surrendered within the year. This results in the

necessity to write off tenement rates for the period when the tenement is surrendered to the end of the

financial year.

INTEREST CHARGES AND INSTALMENTS - 2010/11 FINANCIAL YEAR
Interest | Admin. | Revenue | Budgeted
Rate Charge $ Revenue
% $ $
Charges on Instalment Pian 45 4,095 4,050
4,095 4,050

Ratepayers had the option of paying rates in four equal instalments, due on 3rd September 2010,
3rd November 2010, 3rd January 2011 and 3rd March 2011. An administration fee of $45 was
levied per assessment for the pay in four instalment option.

Page 43

-94-



SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

27. FEES & CHARGES

28.

29,

30,

Govemnance

General Purpose Funding
Law, Order, Public Safety
Health

Education and Welfare
Housing

Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport

Economic Services

Other Property and Services

2011
$

0

4,421
4,617
2,615
29,233
31,553
80,948
77,502
471,239
124,233
589,362

1,415,723

Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

2010
$

480
21,081
6,843
2,999
76,588
29,590
71,385
47,228
304,636
64,401
213,420

838,662

There were no changes during the year to the amount of the fees or charges detailed in the original budget.

GRANT REVENUE

Grants, subsidies and contributions are included as operating revenues in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income:

By Nature and Type:
Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
Non-Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions

By Program:
Governance

General Purpose Funding
Law, Order, Public Safety
Health

Education and Welfare
Housing

Recreation and Culture
Transport

Economic Services

Other Property and Services

ELECTED MEMBERS REMUNERATION

The following fees, expenses and allowances were
paid to council members and/or the president.

Meeting Fees

President's Allowance

Deputy President's Allowance
Travelling Expenses
Telecommunications Allowance

EMPLOYEE NUMBERS

The number of full-time equivalent
employees at balance date

2011 2010
$ $

2,144,095 2,381,096
763,238 317,085
2,907,333 2,698,181
1,500 10,000
1,191,037 1,431,028
12,452 40,955
8,711 12,712
83,836 104,056
5,013 11,925
605,324 118,916
778,222 596,491
205,322 311,013
15,916 61,085
2,907,333 2,698,181

2011 2011 2010

$ Budget $
$

13,720 17,000 12,880
12,000 12,000 12,000
3,000 3,000 3,000
7,183 6,500 4,747
4140 4,200 3,680
40,043 42,700 36,307

2011 2010
25 23

Page 44
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31,

32.

Signed: 15th November, 2011

SHIRE OF LEONORA President:

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011
MAJOR LAND TRANSACTIONS
Industrial Land Subdivision
(a) Details

The purchase and sale of Leonora lots 1354, 1355, 944, 550.

2011 2011 2010

{b) Current year transactions $ Budget $
$

Operating Revenue
- Profit on sale 0 0 0
Capital Revenue
- Sale Proceeds 0 (318,944) 0
Capital Expenditure
- Purchase of Land 0 0 0
- Development Costs 921,048 800,000 122,545

921,048 800,000 122,545

The above capital expenditure is included in land held for resale.
There are no liabilities in relation to this land transaction as at 30 June 2011.

{c) Expected Future Cash Flows

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total
$ $ $ $ $ $
Cash Outflows
- Development Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0
- Loan Repayments 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
Cash Inflows
- Loan Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0
- Sale Proceeds 996,000 0 0 0 0 996,000
996,000 0 0 H 0 996,000
Net Cash Flows 996,000 0 0 0 0 996,000
TRADING UNDERTAKINGS AND MAJOR TRADING UNDERTAKINGS
Council did not participate in any trading undertakings or major trading undertakings during the 2010/11
financial year.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Council's overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to
foreign currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance area under policies approved by the Council.

The Council held the following financial instruments at balance date:

Carrying Value Fair Value
2011 2010 2011 2010

$ $ $ $
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 649,328 1,758,857 649,328 1,758,857
Receivables 305,160 368,412 305,160 368,412

954,488 2,127,269 954,488 2,127,268

Financial Liabilities
Payables 87,880 47,417 87,880 47,417
Borrowings 0 0 0 0

87,880 47,417 87,880 47,417

Fair vaiue is determined as follows:

» Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Payables — estimated to the carrying value
which approximates net market value.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Council’s objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level
of liquidity and preserving capital. The finance area manages the cash and investments portfolio with the
assistance of independent advisers (where applicable). Council has an investment policy and the policy is
subject to review by Council. An Investment Report is provided to Council on a monthly basis setting out
the make-up and performance of the portfolio.

The major risk associated with investments is price risk — the risk that the capital value of investments may
fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether these changes are caused by factors specific to
individual financial instruments of their issuers or factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

Cash and investments are also subject to interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could
affect returns,

Another risk associated with cash and investments is credit rigk — the risk that a contracting entity will not
complete its obligations under a financial instrument resulting in a financial loss to Council.

Council manages these risks by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high credit
ratings or capital guarantees. Council also seeks advice from independent advisers (where applicable)
before placing any cash and investments.

2011 20190
$ $
Impact of a 1% (*) movement in interest rates on cash
and investments:
- Equity 27,713 34,078
- Statement of Comprehensive Income 27,713 34,078

{*) Sensitivity percentages based on management's expectation of future possible market movements.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

SHIRE OF LEONORA
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2011

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Receivables

Council's major receivables comprise rates and annual charges and user charges and fees. The major
risk associated with these receivables is credit risk — the risk that the debts may not be repaid. Council
manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing debt recovery policies.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to recover these debts as a
secured charge over the land — that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to
charge interest on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates, which further
encourages payment.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored
for acceptable coilection performance.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on
most non-rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subject to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

The profile of the Council's credit risk at balance date was:

2011 2010
Percentage of Rates and Annual Charges
- Current 1.19% 10.58%
- Overdue 98.81% 892.42%
Percentage of Other Receivables
- Current 8.53% 87.01%
- Overdue 91.47% 12.99%
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

7.0 NATIONAL COMPETITION POLICY STATEMENT

The Competition Principals Agreement is an Inter-government Agreement between the Commonwealth
and State/Territory Governments that sets out how government will apply National Competition Policy
principle to public sector organisations within their jurisdiction.

The State Government released a Policy Statement effective from July 1996 called the Clause 7
Statement which forms part of the Competition Principles Agreement. The clause 7 policy document
sets out nominated principles from the Agreement that now apply to Local Government. The provisions
of Clause 7 of the Competition Principles Agreement require local government to report annually as to
the implementation, application and effects of the Competition Policy.

The Competition Principles Agreement, under Clause 7, specifies three broad areas of reporting, they
are:

o Competitive Neutrality

o Structural Review of Public Monopolies; and

o [egislative Review

In accordance with the requirements of the National Competition Policy the Shire of Leonora makes the
following disclosure for 2010/2011.

7.1 COMPETITIVE NEUTRALITY

The objective of competitive neutrality is the elimination of resource allocation distortions arising out of
local government ownership of significant business activities.

The Shire of Leonora has assessed its operations and considers that it does not have a business activity
that would be classed as significant under the current guidelines. Also the Shire of Leonora does not
operate a business enterprise that has been classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as either a
Public Trading Enterprise or Public Financial Enterprise.

The number of activities to which competitive neutrality principles have been applied in the reporting
period is: NIL.

The number of activities to which competitive neutrality principles have been considered but not applied
in the reporting period is: NIL.

Under the implementation timetable required by the National Competition Policy Statement the Shire of
Leonora was required to undertake a cost benefit analysis to determine which significant business
activities would be subject to competitive neutrality principles by June 1, 1997. This analysis was not
undertaken by the Shire as no significant activities have been identified as part of its operations.

During the reporting period the Shire of Leonora did not become aware of any allegations of non
compliance with the competitive neutrality principles made by a private entity against the Shire.

7.2 STRUCTURAL REVIEW OF PUBLIC MONOPOLIES

In relation to Structural Review of Public Monopolies the Shire of Leonora discloses the following:

Structural reform principles have been applied to the following number of activities in the reporting
period: NIL.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

Structural reform principles have been considered but not applied to the following number of activities

in the reporting period: NIL.

As no structural reform has been applied to any activities the review requirements of principle SR.3 of

Clause 7 of the Competition Policy Statement have not been undertaken.

8.0 OVERVIEW OF THE PLAN FOR THE FUTURE

PLAN FOR THE FUTURE

MAJOR INITIATIVE COMPLETION BUDGET
Bowling Club Facility 2011-12 $2,000,000
Industrial Land Development 2010-11 $900,000
Heating Swimming Pool 2011-12 $250,000
Plant Replacement As Per Policy 2011-12 $828,000
New Council House 2011-12 $400,000

NEW INITIATIVES NOT IN
THE PLAN FOR THE FUTURE COMPLETION BUDGET
Extension to CRC Meeting Room 2011-12 $120,000
Youth Centre — External
Refurbishment 2011-12 $60,000
Restoration Patroni’s Guest House 2011-12 $285,000
9.0 DISABILITY ACCESS INCLUSION PLAN (DIAP)
(A) The Shire of Leonora is required to comply with the State Government imposed

Disability Services Act (1993).

(B) A Disability Access Inclusion Plan 2011-2015 has been approved with the following

principal intent.

(1) Existing services are adapted to ensure they meet the needs of people with
disabilities.
(i1) Access to buildings and facilities are improved.
(©) The following delivery of services was implemented in the reporting year.
NIL

10.0 RECORD KEEPING PLAN

STATE RECORDS ACT 2000

(A) The Shire of Leonora is required to comply with the abovementioned State Government

imposed Legislation.

(B) A Record Keeping Plan has been produced and approved by the State Records Commission for
a period of 5 years to the 30™ June, 2012. This plan must be reviewed prior to 8" October,

2012.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

© In accordance with minimum compliance requirements of Principle 6 of the State Records
Commission — Standard 2, the following has been implemented:

1. The efficiency and effectiveness of Councils Record Keeping Systems is evaluated not
less than once every three years.

2. The Council conducts a Record Keeping Training program.

3. The efficiency and effectiveness of the Record Keeping Training program is reviewed
from time to time.

4. The Council’s induction program addresses employee roles and responsibilities in
regard to their compliance with Council’s Record Keeping Plan.

11.0 EMPLOYEES’S REMUNERATION

Pursuant to Section 5.53 (2)(g) of the Local Government Act 1995, and Administration
Regulation 19B, set out below, in bands of $10,000, is the number of employees of the Shire
entitled to an annual salary of $100,000 or more.

Salary Range () No. of Employees
120,000 — 129,999 2
220,000 — 229,999 1

12.0  OFFICIAL CONDUCT — COMPLAINTS REGISTER

Pursuant to S.5.121 of the Local Government Act 1995, a complaints register has been maintained. As
at the 30" June 2011, no complaints were recorded, therefore no action was required to deal with
complaints.
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Signed: 15th November, 2011

President:

11.0 NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY DECISION OF THE MEETING.

A. ELECTED MEMBERS
Nil

B. OFFICERS
Nil

12.0 NEXT MEETING
Friday, 16th December, 2011, 2:00pm
13.0 CLOSURE OF MEETING

10:20 am
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